
Village of Forest Park, Illinois 
517 Des Plaines Avenue 

Forest Park, Illinois 60130 
Phone: 708-366-2323 / Fax: 708-488-0361 

Web: www.forestpark.net 

Regular Village Council Meeting Agenda 
Monday, September 26, 2022 – 7:00 p.m. 

Meeting will be conducted In-Person and Via Zoom 

You may listen to the meeting by participating in a Zoom conference call as follows:  
Dial-In Number: 312-626-6799; Meeting ID 81217391504; Passcode 480080 or by clicking here: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81217391504?pwd=WUd5MHNhU3ZhQzdjSXdTU0NjRGQ3Zz09 

Public Comments are required to be submitted to the Village Clerk in advance of the meeting: 
In-Person Comments: Complete and submit Speaker Sign-In Form to Village Clerk prior to 7:00 p.m. 

E-mail Comments: E-mail required to be sent to Village Clerk (vmoritz@forestpark.net) prior to 6:30 p.m.

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
2. ROLL CALL
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

a. September 12, 2022 Village Council Meeting
b. September 12, 2022 Closed Session Meeting

4. PUBLIC COMMENT
5. COMMUNICATIONS

a. Presentation from Safety and Traffic Commission
6. DEPARTMENT REPORTS

a. August 2022 Fire Department Report
b. July/August 2022 Police Department Report

7. BILLS BY RESOLUTION
a. Resolution Approving Payment of Bills Dated September 26, 2022

8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
9. NEW BUSINESS

a. Ordinance Authorizing the Approval of a Joint Purchasing Requisition for the Purchase of Three (3) 
2023 Base Ford Explorer Police Vehicles for the Village of Forest Park Police Department

b. Resolution Authorizing the Award for the 15th Street Sewer Separation Project Contract to John Neri 
Construction Co., Inc.

c. Motion directing the Forest Park Board of Fire and Police Commissioners to promote the next 
eligible Police Lieutenant, the next eligible Police Sergeant and to offer employment to the next 
eligible Probationary Police Officer upon Lieutenant’s retirement

d. Approval: 2023 Village Council Meeting Schedule
e. Approval: Ratification of Mayor’s Execution of November/December Senior Trip Contracts
f. Approval: Ratification of Issuance of Raffle License – Anthony Ambrose Foundation
g. Approval: Entertainment License Application for Oct./Nov. for Jimmy’s Place -7411 Madison
h. Approval: Forest Park PTO Request for Use of the Grove – October 14, 2022

10. ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT
11. COMMISSIONER REPORTS
12. ADJOURNMENT

a. Adjourn into Closed Session pursuant to 5 ILCS 120/2(c) (2) Collective Bargaining Matters



THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE COUNCIL OF THE 
VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

HELD ON MONDAY EVENING, SEPTEMBER 12, 2022 

Mayor Hoskins led all assembled in the Pledge of Allegiance at 7:02 p.m. 

ROLL CALL 

Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd and Mayor Hoskins answered the Roll Call.  

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS 

It was moved by Commissioner Byrnes and seconded by Commissioner Maxham that the minutes 
from the August 22, 2022, Regular Meeting of the Council be approved without reading as each 
member has received a copy thereof.   

ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd 

 and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

Mr. Bill Kalbac spoke in favor of the village adopting an ordinance requiring short-term rental 
operators to register and be licensed with the village.  

COMMUNICATIONS: 

None 

DEPARTMENT REPORTS: 

None 

APPROVAL OF BILLS: 

It was moved by Commissioner Byrnes and seconded by 
Commissioner Maxham that the Resolution for the payment of 
bills be adopted.  The bills totaled $532,324.74. 

R-77-22
RESOLUTION APPROVING 
BILLS IN THE AMOUNT OF 

$532,324.74 
APPROVED 



2 

ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd 

 and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 

None 

NEW BUSINESS: 

It was moved by Commissioner Maxham and seconded by 
Commissioner Byrnes that the Resolution authorizing the 
waiver of the hiring freeze for IMRF employees regarding the 
hiring of three (3) full-time AFSCME Police Department Records 
Clerk employees to fill vacancies be adopted. 

ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd 

 and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 

It was moved by Commissioner Voogd and seconded by 
Commissioner Maxham that the Resolution supporting 
Reproductive Rights be adopted.  

ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd 

 and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 

It was moved by Commissioner Nero and seconded by 
Commissioner Voogd that the Resolution authorizing the 
award of the contract for the 2022 Alley Improvements Project 
be adopted. 

ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd 

 and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 

R-78-22
RESOLUTION WAIVING 

IMRF HIRING FREEZE FOR 
3 POLICE DEPARTMENT 

AFSCME EMPLOYEES 
APPROVED 

R-79-22
RESOLUTION 
SUPPORTING 

REPRODUCTIVE RIGHTS 
APPROVED 

R-80-22
RESOLUTION AWARDING 

2022 ALLEY 
IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 

APPROVED 



3 

It was moved by Commissioner Nero and seconded by 
Commissioner Voogd that the Resolution approving and 
authorizing the execution of a professional engineering 
services proposal for construction engineering services for the 
2022 Alley Improvement Project by and between the Village of 
Forest Park and Christopher B. Burke Engineering, Ltd. be 
adopted.  

ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd 

 and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 

It was moved by Commissioner Voogd and seconded by 
Commissioner Nero that the Resolution authorizing the award 
of the contract for the 2022 Sidewalk Improvements Project be 
adopted. 

ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd 

 and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 

It was moved by Commissioner Voogd and seconded by 
Commissioner Nero that the Resolution approving and 
authorizing the execution of a professional engineering 
services proposal for construction engineering services for the 
2022 Sidewalk Improvement Project by and between the 
Village of Forest Park and Christopher B. Burke Engineering, 
Ltd. be adopted. 

ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd 

 and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 

It was moved by Commissioner Voogd and seconded by 
Commissioner Nero that the Resolution authorizing the award 
of the contract for the Van Buren Multi-Use Path 
Improvements Project be adopted. 

R-81-22
RESOLUTION APPROVING 
ENGINEERING SERVICES 

FOR 2022 ALLEY PROJECT 
APPROVED 

R-82-22
RESOLUTION AWARDING 

2022 SIDEWALK 
IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 

CONTRACT 
APPROVED 

R-83-22
RESOLUTION APPROVING 
ENGINEERING SERVICES 

FOR 2022 SIDEWALK 
IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

APPROVED 

R-84-22
RESOLUTION AWARDING 

VAN BUREN MULTI-USE 
PATH PROJECT 

CONTRACT 
APPROVED 



4 

ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd 

 and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 

It was moved by Commissioner Nero and seconded by 
Commissioner Voogd that the Resolution approving and 
authorizing the execution of a professional engineering 
services proposal for construction engineering services for the 
Van Buren Multi-Use Path Improvements Project by and 
between the Village of Forest Park and Christopher B. Burke 
Engineering, Ltd. be adopted. 

ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd 

 and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 

It was moved by Commissioner Nero and seconded by 
Commissioner Voogd that the Resolution approving and 
authorizing the execution of a professional engineering 
services proposal for construction engineering services for 
Phase II Design 2023 Alley Improvement Project by and 
between the Village of Forest Park and Christopher B. Burke 
Engineering, Ltd. be adopted. 

ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd 

 and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 

It was moved by Commissioner Nero and seconded by 
Commissioner Voogd that the Resolution authorizing 
acceptance and execution of an Illinois Department of 
Transportation State and Community Highway Safety/National 
Priority Safety Program Grant Agreement be adopted. 

R-85-22
RESOLUTION APPROVING 
ENGINEERING SERVICES 
FOR VAN BUREN MULTI-

USE PATH 
IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 

APPROVED 

R-86-22
RESOLUTION APPROVING 
ENGINEERING SERVICES 

FOR 2023 ALLEY 
IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

APPROVED 

R-87-22
RESOLUTION 

AUTHORIZING IDOT 
SAFETY PROGRAM GRANT 

AGREEMENT 
APPROVED 



5 

ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd 

 and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 

It was moved by Commissioner Byrnes and seconded by 
Commissioner Voogd that the Ordinance authorizing the 
purchase of two 5-Ton Packaged Rooftop Air Conditioning 
units be adopted. 

ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd 

 and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 

Clerk Moritz read the Mayor’s Proclamation designating 
October 23 through October 31, 2022, as Red Ribbon Week, 
encouraging citizens to participate in drug prevention 
education activities. 

It was moved by Commissioner Nero and seconded by 
Commissioner Maxham to authorize the mayor’s signature on 
agreements with Drury Lane Theatre and Paramount Theatre, 
associated with Senior Citizen and Community Relations 
functions organized by the Community Center. 

ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd 

 and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 

There was a joint motion and second to approve the request 
from Sarah’s Inn to display purple ribbons along Madison 
Street and Roosevelt Road to promote National Domestic 
Violence Awareness Month. 

ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd 

 and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 

O-36-22
ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING 
THE PURCHASE OF TWO 5-

TON AIR CONDITIONING 
UNITS 

APPROVED 

MAYOR’S PROCLAMATION 
RED RIBBON WEEK 

COMMUNITY CENTER 
AGREEMENTS 

APPROVED BY MOTION 

SARAH’S INN PURPLE 
RIBBON REQUEST 

APPROVED BY MOTION 



6 

It was moved by Commissioner Byrnes and seconded by 
Commissioner Maxham to approve the request from Hephzibah 
Children’s Association to display banners promoting their Kids 
Resale Event at St. John Lutheran Church on September 30 
through October 1, 2022. 

ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd 

 and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 

It was moved by Commissioner Voogd and seconded by 
Commissioner Maxham to approve the request from the Forest 
Park Chamber of Commerce to display banners promoting their 
Fall Wine Walk and Shop event being held on November 5, 
2022. 

ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd 

 and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 

It was moved by Commissioner Byrnes and seconded by 
Commissioner Maxham to approve the request from the Girl 
Scouts of Greater Chicago and Northwest Indiana to conduct 
their Fall product sales from September 23, 2022 through 
January 16, 2023. 

ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd 

 and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 

It was moved by Commissioner Byrnes and seconded by 
Commissioner Nero to approve the request from the Kiwanis 
Club of Forest Park to conduct their annual Peanut Days 
Fundraising event from September 15-18, 2022. 

ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd 

 and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 

HEPHZIBAH BANNER 
REQUEST 

APPROVED BY MOTION 

CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 
BANNER REQUEST 

APPROVED BY MOTION 

GIRL SCOUTS 
FUNDRAISING REQUEST 
APPROVED BY MOTION 

KIWANIS FUNDRAISING 
REQUEST 

APPROVED BY MOTION 



7 

It was moved by Commissioner Maxham and seconded by 
Commissioner Byrnes to approve the entertainment license 
application submitted by Scratch Kitchen, 7445 Madison Street 

ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd 

 and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 

It was moved by Commissioner Maxham and seconded by 
Commissioner Nero to approve the entertainment license 
application submitted by Lathrop Café, 26 Lathrop Avenue. 

ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd 

 and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 

It was moved by Commissioner Maxham and seconded by 
Commissioner Byrnes to approve the entertainment license 
application submitted by Jimmy’s Place, 7411 Madison Street. 

ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd 

 and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 

It was moved by Commissioner Maxham and seconded by 
Commissioner Byrnes to approve the entertainment license 
application submitted by Duffy’s Tavern, 7513 Madison Street. 

ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd 

 and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 

SCRATCH KITCHEN 
ENTERTAINMENT LICENSE 

APPROVED BY MOTION 

LATHROP CAFÉ 
ENTERTAINMENT LICENSE 

APPROVED BY MOTION 

JIMMY’S PLACE 
ENTERTAINMENT LICENSE 

APPROVED BY MOTION 

DUFFY’S TAVERN 
ENTERTAINMENT LICENSE 

APPROVED BY MOTION 



8 

ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT: 

Administrator Amidei reported that the village will have a busy fall with the construction projects 
anticipated to be completed.  Scheduling for the projects is not complete, but all affected properties 
will be notified.  The pre-engineering is being done for 2023 projects in order to get them bid early in 
the spring, pending State funding for lead water service replacements.  The administrator expressed 
his gratitude to Karen Dylewski and her staff for a job well-done with the recent Ribfest. The 
administrator further thanked all of the officials, volunteers, partners and sponsors of the event. 

COMMISSIONER’S REPORTS: 

Commissioner Byrnes stated that the Ribfest was a great event and thanked the volunteers, the 
Street Department, Karen Dylewski and the Community Center staff and all of the participants for 
their contributions. 

Commissioner Maxham stated that the Ribfest was a fantastic event.  The commissioner further 
reported that she has been working with some Forest Park residents who want to keep chickens in 
their yards.  The group has done research with other communities who allow residents to keep 
chickens and has uncovered few, if any, problems.  The commissioner expressed the benefits, such 
as fresh eggs, urban farming and self-sufficiency.   

Commissioner Nero commented about the new procedures at the intersection of Jackson and 
Hannah, near Garfield School and thanked the parents and students for their time and patience.  

Commissioner Voogd reported that the community clean up event was cancelled for the third time, 
due to rain.  The event is now rescheduled for September 24th and the group is meeting at the 
Community Center.  The commissioner further thanked Karen Dylewski, her staff as well as the 
Public Works, Police and Fire Departments for their hard work making the Ribfest a great, well-
attended event.  Last, the commissioner reported that the Altenheim steering committee met earlier 
today and conducted a site visit.  The next meeting is scheduled for October 3rd at 5:30.   

Mayor Hoskins thanked Community Center Director, Karen Dylewski, her staff and the Public Works, 
Police and Fire departments as well as the volunteers who made the Ribfest a huge success.  The 
mayor reported that in July, non-profit PLCCA contacted the village looking for placement for 
teenagers in their summer work program.  Director Stella agreed to partner with PLCCA and took on 
ten of the teens to help out with the summer work in Public Works.  The village received the services 
of the teens free of charge, but did hire a local resident to mentor and guide the teens.  The program 
went well and the mayor is hoping to repeat the arrangement again next year.  Mayor Hoskins 
reported that he attended a Transportation Industry dinner with top-level CTA, PACE, Metra and RTA 
officials, along with the mayors of both Oak Park and River Forest.  The three mayors lobbied the 
Board Chair of the CTA to expedite the removal of the rusty water tower on the north end of town. 
Last, the mayor reported that Walmart held a grand re-opening event last Friday and they also finally 
joined the Chamber of Commerce.  



9 

ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business to be addressed, Commissioner Nero moved and Commissioner 
Byrnes seconded to adjourn into closed session pursuant to 5 ILCS 120/2(c)(2) to consider collective 
bargaining matters. The motion carried. 

Mayor Hoskins declared the meeting adjourned at 7:55 P.M.

Respectfully submitted, 

Vanessa Moritz 
Village Clerk 



Forest Park 
Safety and Traffic 
Commission 
Year to Date Report 9/26/22



Reviewed Issues – No Action

• 7200 Franklin – Parking in front of Dog Den, requested crosswalk
• Isolated incident, parking is available, no history in police reports

• 1000 Lathrop – Traffic speeding through
• Block is bounded by stop signs, no history in police reports
• Discussed painting parking lanes, local traffic only signage at one-way entrances, broader

village-wide approach rather than individual streets

• Elgin/Jackson – Request for crosswalk
• Streets don’t align, there are curb cuts, crosswalks not warranted, several crosswalks

nearby

• Troost/Harvard – Northbound traffic not yielding to Harvard
• Signage is proper and well marked

• Des Plaines/Brown/Franklin – 5-way intersection safety
• Intersection is safe when traversed with care, no incidents reported



Reviewed Issues – Completed

• 1200-1300 Marengo (Betsy Ross) –
No School Zone Signs

• One police call, no formal report
• Recommendations:

• Install school zone signs
• Sal and Public Works put signs up



Reviewed Issues – Action Recommended

• Circle and Lehmer – No Crosswalk between 
Dog Park and Veteran’s Park

• Police reports have one pedestrian struck in 
last year

• Recommendations:
• Install crosswalk with proper cutouts on North side of 

intersection
• No recommendation regarding timing



Reviewed Issues – Action Recommended

• Madison/Elgin
• See attached report with more details
• Traffic backs up beyond crosswalk at Elgin (East)
• Vehicles attempting to turn NB onto Harlem drive down 

median
• Creates blind corner for pedestrians and vehicles at the 

crosswalk
• Recommendations (phased introduction):

• Option 1: Fix/ensure existing crosswalk lighted signs are functioning
• Option 2: Physical sign mounted in the street to yield to pedestrians in crosswalk
• Option 3: Eliminate parking on south side of Madison between Elgin and Harlem 

to create right turn lane
• Option 4: Move crosswalk to the west Elgin Ave leg so that it is at the intersection



Reviewed Issues – Action Recommended

• Madison/Marengo/Starbucks 
Traffic Flow @ Alley and 
Marengo

• See attached report with more 
details

• Blind exit from alley to Marengo
• Recommendations:

• Install signs warning of the blind alley exit
• Install mirrors on both corners



Reviewed Issues – Action Recommended

• Lathrop/Brown
• Pedestrian traffic difficult when 

NB traffic from Brown blocks 
intersection or fails to stop

• Recommendations:
• Repaint yellow curb in front of 

Montessori school on Lathrop



Reviewed Issues – Action Recommended

• Madison Crosswalks
• Commission to continue

reviewing
• Recommendation:

• Install yield to pedestrian signs at all
crosswalks with available medians, just as
recommended in the Madison/Elgin report



Pending Issues

• Madison Crosswalks – Pedestrian safety
• 1100 Elgin – Speeding traffic, ignoring one-way
• Harlem (Elgin)/Randolph - Crosswalk



Forest Park Safety & Traffic Commission 
Report 

Eastbound Madison to Northbound Harlem @ Elgin and Crosswalk 



• Problem Statement/Facts 

o There is a mid-block crosswalk located between the two Elgin Ave legs, in front of Fat 

Duck 

o There is a painted median prior to the crosswalk when traveling eastbound 

o There is a left turn lane at Harlem to head northbound 

o Traffic at the light often backs up beyond the beginning of the left turn lane 

o Vehicles will travel down the median when traffic is backed up in order to enter into the 

left turn lane 

o When traffic is backed up pedestrians at the crosswalk are blind to any vehicles driving 

down the median 

o Emergency vehicles make use of this median during emergencies and require it to be 

passable 

o 10 traffic incidents in that area have been reported from 1/1/21 to 5/23/22 though 

none were involving pedestrians. Only speaks to documented incidents 

o Staff at Fat Duck have reported continual close calls involving pedestrians attempting to 

cross at the crosswalk 

• Proposed Solutions – Ranked in order of preference, propose 1 & 2 for immediate consideration 

o Option 1: Fix/ensure existing crosswalk lighted signs are functioning 

o Option 2: Install a break away in-road pedestrian crossing sign as pictured below: 

▪  
▪ Datasheet from one vendor attached 

▪ This sign would be mounted in the street, but it would fold over if hit. “Unit has 

an anti-twist reactive spring assembly that rebounds to upright when struck.” 

▪ Sign is removable for plowing and other needs 

▪ We expect that this sign would present not just increased visibility for the 

crossing, but it would also act as a physical barrier to traffic entering into the 

median without impeding emergency vehicle traffic. 



o Option 3: Eliminate parking on south side of Madison between Elgin and Harlem to

create right turn lane

▪ This would reduce the line length in the center lane and facilitate legal access to

the left turn lane

▪ Lane could be right turn only, or right turn and straight. Lanes merge into one

on Oak Park side of Harlem.

o Option 4: Move crosswalk to the west Elgin Ave leg so it is at the intersection

▪ This is a more expensive option, but would eliminate the mid-block crosswalk

and provide greater visibility to it

▪ Vehicles would be traversing both the Elgin/Madison intersection illegally, and

the remaining median



Madison/Marengo/Starbucks Traffic Flow @ Alley and Marengo





• Problem Statement/Facts

o Traffic exiting Starbucks travels northbound on Elgin or enters the alley north of

Starbucks and loops to Marengo to return to Madison

o There is covered parking in the building with access via the alley as well as a lot north of

the alley

o The westbound exit from the alley to Marengo is blind in both directions to southbound

traffic and bi-directional pedestrian traffic

• Proposed Solution

o Install signs warning of the blind alley exit

o Install mirrors on both corners



FOREST PARK 

FIRE DEPARTMENT 

AUGUST 2022 



Calls 

The Fire Department responded to 362 calls in the month of August. That is an average of 11.6 

calls per day for the month. 59% of the calls were for EMS. 41% were for fire/service calls.  

Major Incidents: 

08/01/2022   7309 Franklin ‐ Forest Park – Balcony Fire 

08/10/2022    426 S Euclid – Oak Park – Structure Fire 

08/15/2022    290 @ 1st Ave – Fatal Roll‐over crash 

08/25/2022    290 EB Ramp @ Desplaines – Fatal Roll‐over crash  

181

71

Total Calls 252 

EMS Fire/Service



426 S Euclid  ‐ Oak Park 

Forest Park Crews assisted with a kitchen fire 



Inspections 

Residential inspections. = 4 

Commercial inspections on hold. 

Training 

August 2022 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

FPFD         

 Apparatus Positioning   9.5 

 Bloodborne Pathogens   10 

 Building Tour    6 

 Driver Training   14.25 

 EMS CE    9 

 Extrication    1 

 FAE   10 

 Hoseline Advancement  2.75 

 Tools and Equipment   3 

Total =      65.5 

0

4

Inspections

Commercial Residential



Child Safety Seat Installations – 2 car seat installations

Community Involvement‐ We had 6 Block parties the FD attended, The back 

to school Picnic at the Park District, The FD had the Deputy and Engine 402 staffed 

at the Fireworks on the 18th. 

Park District Fireworks 



Block Party Fun! 





Forest Park Police Department

Time Period 07/01/2022 - 07/31/2022

35

40

45

50

55

60

65

70

M
on

da
y

T
ue

sd
ay

W
ed

ne
sd

ay

T
hu

rs
da

y

F
rid

ay

Sat
ur

da
y

Sun
da

y

45

36

51

42

68

51

43

Items For Service Distribution
Total By Day of Week

 336

Total Items For Service

Incident Statistics

4

8

12

16

20

24

28

32

00
:0

0-
01

:0
0

01
:0

0-
02

:0
0

02
:0

0-
03

:0
0

03
:0

0-
04

:0
0

04
:0

0-
05

:0
0

05
:0

0-
06

:0
0

06
:0

0-
07

:0
0

07
:0

0-
08

:0
0

08
:0

0-
09

:0
0

09
:0

0-
10

:0
0

10
:0

0-
11

:0
0

11
:0

0-
12

:0
0

12
:0

0-
13

:0
0

13
:0

0-
14

:0
0

14
:0

0-
15

:0
0

15
:0

0-
16

:0
0

16
:0

0-
17

:0
0

17
:0

0-
18

:0
0

18
:0

0-
19

:0
0

19
:0

0-
20

:0
0

20
:0

0-
21

:0
0

21
:0

0-
22

:0
0

22
:0

0-
23

:0
0

23
:0

0-
24

:0
0

15

10
8 9

4
7 7

22

16

21

15

20
18

16 16 15

29

21
18

10 9 9

13

8

Items For Service Distribution
Total By Hour of Day

Page 1 of 1



Forest Park Police Department

Time Period 08/01/2022 - 08/31/2022

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

M
on

da
y

T
ue

sd
ay

W
ed

ne
sd

ay

T
hu

rs
da

y

F
rid

ay

Sat
ur

da
y

Sun
da

y

50

75

50
46 49

35

23

Items For Service Distribution
Total By Day of Week

 328

Total Items For Service

Incident Statistics

0

4

8

12

16

20

24

28

00
:0

0-
01

:0
0

01
:0

0-
02

:0
0

02
:0

0-
03

:0
0

03
:0

0-
04

:0
0

04
:0

0-
05

:0
0

05
:0

0-
06

:0
0

06
:0

0-
07

:0
0

07
:0

0-
08

:0
0

08
:0

0-
09

:0
0

09
:0

0-
10

:0
0

10
:0

0-
11

:0
0

11
:0

0-
12

:0
0

12
:0

0-
13

:0
0

13
:0

0-
14

:0
0

14
:0

0-
15

:0
0

15
:0

0-
16

:0
0

16
:0

0-
17

:0
0

17
:0

0-
18

:0
0

18
:0

0-
19

:0
0

19
:0

0-
20

:0
0

20
:0

0-
21

:0
0

21
:0

0-
22

:0
0

22
:0

0-
23

:0
0

23
:0

0-
24

:0
0

17

8

3 2 3

8
6

10

25
22

20

25

18 18 18
16

22
24

10

14

8
6

8

17

Items For Service Distribution
Total By Hour of Day

Page 1 of 1



UCR STATS 2022
Jan Feb Mar Apr MayJun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec YTD 

Felony Arrests 5 10 11 8 13 8 11 6 72

Misdemeanor Arrests 32 32 46 20 37 54 34 27 282

Warrant Arrests 10 8 5 16 7 14 14 8 82

DUI Arrests 4 2 1 0 2 0 0 0 9

Suspended License Arrests 9 10 13 8 18 16 23 17 114

Traffic Citations Issued 81 66 93 59 109 105 118 65 696

Traffic Crashes 47 45 62 64 64 74 55 60 471

Vehicular Hijackings 1 1 0 0 0 0 1 1 4

Total 1452

Police Reports 374 285 301 304 329 376 338 330 2637

INDEX CRIME OFFENSES
Criminal Homicide 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Forcible Rape 1 1 1 1 3 1 1 0 9

Robbery 3 6 2 4 1 1 1 2 20

Agg. Assault/Agg Battery 1 5 2 1 2 1 1 1 14

Burglary 3 2 6 5 15 7 4 3 45

Theft 17 18 26 27 32 38 28 25 211

Motor Vehicle Theft 1 5 5 2 10 3 4 7 37

Arson 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 336

INDEX CRIME ARRESTS
Criminal Homicide 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Forcible Rape 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Robbery 0 2 2 1 1 0 0 0 6

Agg. Assault/Agg Battery 1 2 1 0 2 0 1 1 8

Burglary 2 0 0 0 2 0 1 1 6

Theft 2 3 8 4 3 5 2 4 31

Motor Vehicle Theft 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 2

Arson 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 53

DRUG CRIME ARRESTS
Cannabis Control Act 0 1 2 0 0 1 1 1 6

Controlled Substance 2 1 2 1 1 0 0 2 9

Hypodermic Needle/Syringe 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Drug Paraphernalia 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

Methamphetamine 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 16



July / August 2022 

Following are activities related to the Forest Park Police Department that took place in July and August 

2022: 

• 7-04-22 – 4th of July Fireworks – Plan in place – Event cancelled.

• 7-20-22 – Part Time Officer Elsa Franco sworn in.

• 7-20-22 -- Auxiliary Officer Daniel Dudek sworn in.



• 7-23-22 – Isaac Beal street naming at Marengo and Lexington – Chief Gross, Lt. Miller, Sgt.

Defors, Ofc. Frey, Ofc. Cannon, and Ofc. Arroyo.

• 7-28-22 to 7-31-22 – No Glove Nationals at the Forest Park Park District.  Auxiliary and full-time

police officers provided security.

• 7-31-22 – No Glove Nationals Salute to first responders with Chief Gross the mother of Ofc.

Jose Flores throwing out first pitches for the championship game.

• 8-16-22 – Groovin’ in the Grove – Aux. Ofc. Knack

• 8-18-22 – Fireworks at the Forest Park Park District – Aux. Ofc. Knack and Aux. Ofc. O’Mara

• 8-23-22 – Chicago PD TV Shoot – 7216 Circle – FPPD provided security.

• 8-29-22 – Swearing in of Brian Printz and Joe Aftanas – Ofc. Printz will attend the Chicago

Police Department’s Suburban Academy and Ofc. Aftanas will attend the Suburban Law

Enforcement Academy at the College of DuPage

• Congratulations to Sgt. Adam Stasinopoulos, Ofc. Jesus Arroyo, and Ofc. Zach Calamus.  The

wives of all three officers each gave birth to baby girls in the July/August 2022 time period.













Vehicle Pursuit Dashboard
Report Date: 9/1/2022

Forest Park Police Department

Powered by: 

DASHBOARD ‐ VEHICLE PURSUIT ‐ THIS YEAR

TOTAL
INCIDENTS

9

OPEN

1
PENDING
ASSIGNED

1

PENDING
REVIEW

0

PENDING
APPROVAL

0

COMPLETE

7

INITIATING EVENT

Traffic Stop

Fleeing to Elude

Robbery/Aggravated
Robbery/Armed Robbery

Burglary to Motor Vehicle

PSMV

Assist Other Agency

36.4%

9.1%

9.1%

9.1%

9.1%

27.3%

REASON FOR TERMINATION

Police voluntarily
terminated pursuit

Lost sight of vehicle

Terminated by supervisor

Suspect surrendered/
stopped

8.3%

16.7%

8.3%
66.7%

VEHICLE PURSUIT SUMMARY BY MONTH

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep

Month

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

V
eh

ic
le

 P
ur

su
it



Advanced Force Report
Report Date: 9/1/2022

Forest Park Police Department

Powered by: 

USE OF FORCE VS. EVENT COMPARISON (RESULT FOR YEAR 2022)

USE OF FORCE VS. EVENT COMPARISON SUMMARY BY MONTH

Event vs. Arrests vs. Use of Force Comparison

Events

Arrests

Use of Force

January February March April May June July August September October November December

Months

0

500

1K

1.5K

2K

2022 Events vs. Use Of Force

MONTHS TOTAL EVENTS USE OF FORCE %

January 0 0 0.00%

February 0 0 0.00%

March 0 0 0.00%

April 0 0 0.00%

May 0 0 0.00%

June 0 0 0.00%

July 1613 5 0.31%

August 1329 0 0.00%

September 0 0 0.00%

October 0 0 0.00%

November 0 0 0.00%

December 0 0 0.00%

Total Events: 2942
Use of Force Incidents: 5 0.17%

2022 Arrests vs. Use Of Force

MONTHS TOTAL ARRESTS USE OF FORCE %

January 0 0 0.00%

February 0 0 0.00%

March 0 0 0.00%

April 0 0 0.00%

May 0 0 0.00%

June 0 0 0.00%

July 74 5 6.76%

August 57 0 0.00%

September 0 0 0.00%

October 0 0 0.00%

November 0 0 0.00%

December 0 0 0.00%

Total Arrests: 131
Use of Force Incidents: 5 3.82%



Use Of Force Dashboard
Report Date: 9/1/2022

Forest Park Police Department

Powered by: 

DASHBOARD ‐ USE OF FORCE ‐ THIS YEAR

TOTAL
INCIDENTS

5

OPEN

0
PENDING
ASSIGNED

0

PENDING
REVIEW

0

PENDING
APPROVAL

0

COMPLETE

5

INCIDENT TYPE

Battery/Aggravated Battery

Domestic Violence

PSMV

Mental Health

Traffic Stop

Assault/Aggravated
Assault

28.6%

14.3%

14.3%

14.3%

14.3%

14.3%

REASON FOR DEFENSIVE ACTION

Mental Health Concern

To defend a civilan

To make an arrest

To prevent escape
33.3%

16.7%

33.3%

16.7%

USE OF FORCE SUMMARY BY MONTH

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep

Month

0

1

2

3

4

5

In
ci
de

nt



 

 

Report generated with data through 08/18/2022. Please contact SAOData@cookcountyil.gov with questions about this data or anything else related to publicly available CCSAO data. 1 

 

Cook County State’s Attorney’s Office (CCSAO) June 2022 Report 
Forest Park 

All incidents for the below cases occurred within Forest Park. CCSAO data in this report does not include misdemeanor 
charges. 

1. Adult Felony Review & Prosecution 

a) Overall 

In June 2022, the CCSAO reviewed and made a charging decision for 6 adult felony cases in Forest Park. 4 cases were approved 
resulting in a 67% approval rate. Overall, the CCSAO prosecuted 4 cases, and all those cases were filed by the CCSAO, not 
directly filed by law enforcement. Of these CCSAO-filed adult felony cases, 4 were convicted, a 100% conviction rate. 

 . Felony Review  Prosecution Overall  Prosecution of SAO Filed 

Area . Reviewed Approved* Approval Rate . Prosecuted** Guilty Conviction Rate . Prosecuted Guilty Conviction Rate 

Forest Park  6 4 67%  4 4 100%  4 4 100% 
Cook County  1,469 1,272 87%  1,810 1,261 70%  1,384 1,096 79% 

b) Top Reviewed & Prosecuted Adult Felony Categories 

Forest Park 

Ranking . Top Reviewed Category Reviewed Approved App. 
Rate . Top Prosecuted Category Prosecuted Guilty Conv. 

Rate 

1  Unlawful Use of Weapons 3 2 67%  Aggravated DUI 1 1 100% 

2  Retail Theft 2 1 50%  Aggravated Fleeing and Eluding 1 1 100% 

3  Aggravated Battery 1 1 100%  Possession of Stolen Motor 
Vehicle 1 1 100% 

4  -- -- -- --  Unlawful Use of Weapons 1 1 100% 

5  -- -- -- --  -- -- -- -- 

Cook County 

Ranking . Top Reviewed Category Reviewed Approved App. 
Rate . Top Prosecuted Category Prosecuted Guilty Conv. 

Rate 

1  Unlawful Use of Weapons 683 610 89%  Unlawful Use of Weapons 578 458 79% 

2  Aggravated Battery Police 
Officer 75 72 96%  Narcotics 449 178 40% 

3  Aggravated DUI 58 49 84%  Aggravated DUI 100 93 93% 

4  Retail Theft 58 45 78%  Burglary 83 75 90% 

5  Homicide 53 46 87%  Aggravated Battery Police Officer 66 53 80% 

c) Felony Review & Prosecution by Race 

 Forest Park  Cook County 

Race . Reviewed Approved App. 
Rate Prosecuted Guilty Conv. 

Rate . Reviewed Approved App. 
Rate Prosecuted Guilty Conv. 

Rate 

Black  4 2 50% 2 2 100%  1,007 903 90% 1,232 864 70% 
White  1 1 100% 1 1 100%  132 114 86% 212 128 60% 
Latinx  1 1 100% 1 1 100%  274 241 88% 317 239 75% 
Asian  0 0 -- 0 0 --  6 6 100% 14 10 71% 
Biracial  0 0 -- 0 0 --  8 7 88% 15 11 73% 
Other  0 0 -- 0 0 --  1 1 100% 0 0 -- 
Unknown  0 0 -- 0 0 --  134 79 59% 17 8 47% 

2. Adult Felony Diversion 

a) Overall 

mailto:SAOData@cookcountyil.gov
https://datacatalog.cookcountyil.gov/browse?tags=state%27s+attorney+case-level&sortBy=most_accessed


 

 

Report generated with data through 08/18/2022. Please contact SAOData@cookcountyil.gov with questions about this data or anything else related to publicly available CCSAO data. 1 

 

Cook County State’s Attorney’s Office (CCSAO) July 2022 Report 
Forest Park 

All incidents for the below cases occurred within Forest Park. CCSAO data in this report does not include misdemeanor 
charges. 

1. Adult Felony Review & Prosecution 

a) Overall 

In July 2022, the CCSAO reviewed and made a charging decision for 5 adult felony cases in Forest Park. 5 cases were approved 
resulting in a 100% approval rate. Overall, the CCSAO prosecuted 6 cases, and all those cases were filed by the CCSAO, not 
directly filed by law enforcement. Of these CCSAO-filed adult felony cases, 5 were convicted, an 83% conviction rate. 

 . Felony Review  Prosecution Overall  Prosecution of SAO Filed 

Area . Reviewed Approved* Approval Rate . Prosecuted** Guilty Conviction Rate . Prosecuted Guilty Conviction Rate 

Forest Park  5 5 100%  6 5 83%  6 5 83% 
Cook County  1,416 1,215 86%  1,546 1,077 70%  1,208 965 80% 

b) Top Reviewed & Prosecuted Adult Felony Categories 

Forest Park 

Ranking . Top Reviewed Category Reviewed Approved App. 
Rate . Top Prosecuted Category Prosecuted Guilty Conv. 

Rate 

1  Unlawful Use of Weapons 3 3 100%  Unlawful Use of Weapons 2 2 100% 

2  Aggravated Fleeing and Eluding 1 1 100%  Aggravated DUI 2 1 50% 

3  Possession of Stolen Motor 
Vehicle 1 1 100%  Robbery 1 1 100% 

4  -- -- -- --  Aggravated Battery Police 
Officer 1 1 100% 

5  -- -- -- --  -- -- -- -- 

Cook County 

Ranking . Top Reviewed Category Reviewed Approved App. 
Rate . Top Prosecuted Category Prosecuted Guilty Conv. 

Rate 

1  Unlawful Use of Weapons 679 600 88%  Unlawful Use of Weapons 488 395 81% 

2  Aggravated DUI 76 67 88%  Narcotics 357 125 35% 

3  Sex Crimes 75 44 59%  Aggravated DUI 80 73 91% 

4  Aggravated Battery Police Officer 56 51 91%  Burglary 70 59 84% 

5  Retail Theft 52 38 73%  Retail Theft 53 36 68% 

c) Felony Review & Prosecution by Race 

 Forest Park  Cook County 

Race . Reviewed Approved App. 
Rate Prosecuted Guilty Conv. 

Rate . Reviewed Approved App. 
Rate Prosecuted Guilty Conv. 

Rate 

Black  2 2 100% 3 3 100%  945 830 88% 1,080 748 69% 
White  2 2 100% 1 0 0%  141 123 87% 166 121 73% 
Latinx  0 0 -- 0 0 --  230 214 93% 255 178 70% 
Asian  0 0 -- 0 0 --  16 11 69% 17 14 82% 
Biracial  0 0 -- 1 1 100%  9 8 89% 11 8 73% 
Other  0 0 -- 0 0 --  0 0 -- 0 0 -- 
Unknown  1 1 100% 1 1 100%  180 121 67% 16 7 44% 

2. Adult Felony Diversion 

a) Overall 

mailto:SAOData@cookcountyil.gov
https://datacatalog.cookcountyil.gov/browse?tags=state%27s+attorney+case-level&sortBy=most_accessed


 

 

Report generated with data through 08/18/2022. Please contact SAOData@cookcountyil.gov with questions about this data or anything else related to publicly available CCSAO data. 2 

 

In July 2022, the CCSAO referred 0 defendants in Forest Park to a diversion program. 0 defendants graduated from their 
diversion program and 0 defendants failed their diversion program. 

Area Total Referral*** Total Graduated Total Failed Graduation Rate 

Forest Park 0 0 0 -- 

Cook County 149 43 23 65% 

b) Top Diverted Adult Felony Categories 

Forest Park 

Ranking Top Diverted Category Total Referral Total Graduated Total Failed Graduation Rate 

-- -- -- -- -- -- 

Cook County 

Ranking Top Diverted Category Total Referral Total Graduated Total Failed Graduation Rate 

1 Narcotics 82 33 12 73% 

2 Burglary 21 0 3 0% 

3 Unlawful Use of Weapons 18 1 1 50% 

4 Aggravated Battery Police Officer 6 1 0 100% 

5 Retail Theft 6 0 2 0% 

c) Diversion by Race 

 a Forest Park  Cook County 

Race . Total Referral Total Graduated Total Failed Graduation Rate . Total Referral Total Graduated Total Failed Graduation Rate 

Black  0 0 0 --  91 19 15 56% 
White  0 0 0 --  26 12 4 75% 
Latinx  0 0 0 --  22 12 2 86% 
Asian  0 0 0 --  1 0 1 0% 
Biracial  0 0 0 --  1 0 0 -- 
Other  0 0 0 --  0 0 0 -- 
Unknown  0 0 0 --  8 0 1 0% 

 
* The CCSAO’s first contact with a felony case typically occurs through the Felony Review process. If an arresting agency decides to charge the arrestee with a felony, the CCSAO’s Felony 
Review Unit (FRU) must be contacted to review the evidence and decide whether charges can be filed. Law enforcement can only directly file felonies under limited circumstances, such as 
narcotics cases, non-felony traffic offenses, and misdemeanors. In some instances, a case may also be directly indicted by a grand jury instead of going through the FRU process. Once the 
review process is complete, the FRU will either approve or decline to file the charges or choose to continue the case for the police to further investigate. Approve: Sufficient facts and 
evidence support felony charges. Decline: the evidence presented is insufficient to support felony charges. If felony charges are not approved by the CCSAO, police can refile the case as a 
misdemeanor. If initial charges are declined, the CCSAO can call for the investigation to continue and will then review additional evidence when presented. The approval rate is calculated by 
dividing the number of approved cases by the total number of reviewed cases. For example, the FRU reviewed 55 robbery cases - approved 50 and declined 5. The approval rate would be 
50/ (50+5) = 91%. Sometimes the FRU will determine that there is not enough information yet from law enforcement to approve or decline charges, so they will classify the case as a 
Continued Investigation (CI). CI’ed case numbers are not included here. 
** Prosecuted: A case is moved through the system to a conclusion of guilty or not guilty; Guilty: defendant was determined to be guilty of criminal charges; Conviction rate: Number of 
guilty dispositions (plea of guilty, finding of guilty, or verdict of guilty) divided by the number of cases prosecuted. Cases that reached disposition during this year may have been initiated 
prior to this timeframe. 
*** Diversion can occur at many points throughout the criminal justice process. As the prosecuting body for Cook County, diversion for the CCSAO refers to connecting defendants to 
services and programs (e.g., assistance with substance abuse, employment, mental health treatment, etc.), rather than sentencing them to time in custody. Assistant State’s Attorneys screen 
cases and refer eligible defendants to diversion programs. There are pre-plea and post-plea court-based diversion programs available in Cook County; five are pre-plea diversion programs 
overseen by the CCSAO, and three are post-plea programs overseen by the Office of the Chief Judge. Learn more about Cook County diversion programs. Referral is the number of individuals 
referred to a diversion program. Graduated is the number of individuals who successfully completed a diversion program. Failed is the number of people who either dropped out of a 
diversion program or were disqualified from the program (for example getting rearrested). The graduation rate is defined as the number of graduates divided by the number of individuals 
who either graduated or failed a program. 

mailto:SAOData@cookcountyil.gov
https://datacatalog.cookcountyil.gov/browse?tags=state%27s+attorney+case-level&sortBy=most_accessed
https://www.cookcountystatesattorney.org/resources/diversion-programs


 

 

Report generated with data through 08/18/2022. Please contact SAOData@cookcountyil.gov with questions about this data or anything else related to publicly available CCSAO data. 2 

 

In June 2022, the CCSAO referred 1 defendant in Forest Park to a diversion program. 0 defendants graduated from their 
diversion program and 0 defendants failed their diversion program. 

Area Total Referral*** Total Graduated Total Failed Graduation Rate 

Forest Park 1 0 0 -- 

Cook County 164 94 21 82% 

b) Top Diverted Adult Felony Categories 

Forest Park 

Ranking Top Diverted Category Total Referral Total Graduated Total Failed Graduation Rate 

1 Criminal Damage to Property 1 0 0 -- 

Cook County 

Ranking Top Diverted Category Total Referral Total Graduated Total Failed Graduation Rate 

1 Narcotics 85 60 7 90% 

2 Retail Theft 16 1 3 25% 

3 Unlawful Use of Weapons 14 5 1 83% 

4 Burglary 12 4 3 57% 

5 Identity Theft 7 2 0 100% 

c) Diversion by Race 

 a Forest Park  Cook County 

Race . Total Referral Total Graduated Total Failed Graduation Rate . Total Referral Total Graduated Total Failed Graduation Rate 

Black  0 0 0 --  102 50 14 78% 
White  1 0 0 --  36 21 5 81% 
Latinx  0 0 0 --  14 18 2 90% 
Asian  0 0 0 --  3 1 0 100% 
Biracial  0 0 0 --  0 1 0 100% 
Other  0 0 0 --  0 0 0 -- 
Unknown  0 0 0 --  9 3 0 100% 

 
* The CCSAO’s first contact with a felony case typically occurs through the Felony Review process. If an arresting agency decides to charge the arrestee with a felony, the CCSAO’s Felony 
Review Unit (FRU) must be contacted to review the evidence and decide whether charges can be filed. Law enforcement can only directly file felonies under limited circumstances, such as 
narcotics cases, non-felony traffic offenses, and misdemeanors. In some instances, a case may also be directly indicted by a grand jury instead of going through the FRU process. Once the 
review process is complete, the FRU will either approve or decline to file the charges or choose to continue the case for the police to further investigate. Approve: Sufficient facts and 
evidence support felony charges. Decline: the evidence presented is insufficient to support felony charges. If felony charges are not approved by the CCSAO, police can refile the case as a 
misdemeanor. If initial charges are declined, the CCSAO can call for the investigation to continue and will then review additional evidence when presented. The approval rate is calculated by 
dividing the number of approved cases by the total number of reviewed cases. For example, the FRU reviewed 55 robbery cases - approved 50 and declined 5. The approval rate would be 
50/ (50+5) = 91%. Sometimes the FRU will determine that there is not enough information yet from law enforcement to approve or decline charges, so they will classify the case as a 
Continued Investigation (CI). CI’ed case numbers are not included here. 
** Prosecuted: A case is moved through the system to a conclusion of guilty or not guilty; Guilty: defendant was determined to be guilty of criminal charges; Conviction rate: Number of 
guilty dispositions (plea of guilty, finding of guilty, or verdict of guilty) divided by the number of cases prosecuted. Cases that reached disposition during this year may have been initiated 
prior to this timeframe. 
*** Diversion can occur at many points throughout the criminal justice process. As the prosecuting body for Cook County, diversion for the CCSAO refers to connecting defendants to 
services and programs (e.g., assistance with substance abuse, employment, mental health treatment, etc.), rather than sentencing them to time in custody. Assistant State’s Attorneys screen 
cases and refer eligible defendants to diversion programs. There are pre-plea and post-plea court-based diversion programs available in Cook County; five are pre-plea diversion programs 
overseen by the CCSAO, and three are post-plea programs overseen by the Office of the Chief Judge. Learn more about Cook County diversion programs. Referral is the number of individuals 
referred to a diversion program. Graduated is the number of individuals who successfully completed a diversion program. Failed is the number of people who either dropped out of a 
diversion program or were disqualified from the program (for example getting rearrested). The graduation rate is defined as the number of graduates divided by the number of individuals 
who either graduated or failed a program. 

mailto:SAOData@cookcountyil.gov
https://datacatalog.cookcountyil.gov/browse?tags=state%27s+attorney+case-level&sortBy=most_accessed
https://www.cookcountystatesattorney.org/resources/diversion-programs


 

Criminal Investigations Division 

July and August 2022 

 

 

The Forest Park Police Department’s (FPPD) Criminal Investigation Division (CID) is supervised by Lt. 

Pete Morrissette. Two detectives are assigned to CID; Det. Jarlath Heveran and Det. Joe Schick.  Det. 

Mike O’Connor is the police department’s Community Policing / Crime Free Housing Officer.  LaShan 

Riggins, the Forest Park Police Department’s Evidence Custodian, is a member of CID and aside from 

her evidence custodian duties performs administrative duties for the investigators, and assists the 24-

hour desk, parking, and records when needed.  There is a counselor assigned to the department from 

Amita Health Behavioral Health Clinician.  Our Police Crisis Services Worker is Evelyn Simmons. 

Evelyn is outsourced to the Forest Park Police Department four (4) days a week and has office space 

within the CID building located at 501 Desplaines Ave. 

Police incident reports are reviewed by the Investigations Division every working day. Incidents that 

have victims wishing to sign a complaint against an offender are assigned to a detective for further 

review in an effort to develop a suspect(s), conduct interviews, and gather evidence to effect an arrest 

and present a winnable case in criminal court.  Some incidents are turned over to Evelyn Simmons 

should there be a need for outreach from her organization, mainly in reference to mental health 

concerns.  Other incidents such as neighbor or landlord tenant disputes, are forwarded to Det. Mike 

O’Connor so he can intervene and possibly mediate or offer eviction advice. Problem properties may be 

deemed a nuisance by Det. O’Connor should they meet the criteria established under the village 

ordinance. 



Detectives rotate on call assignments weekly so a Forest Park Police Detective is available 24 hours a 

day, seven days a week should the need for CID assistance arise.  If a major incident is encountered 

during off hours, the entire CID staff could be called upon to respond if needed. 

The detectives are members of the West Suburban Major Crimes Task Force (WESTAF) and are, at 

times, on call to assist member agencies should a homicide occur in a WESTAF jurisdiction.  There 

were no WESTAF callouts during this time period. 

Currently, the Forest Park PD is a member agency in the multijurisdictional West Suburban Drug and 

Gang Enforcement Task Force (WEDGE).  Det. Schick and Det. O’Connor are assigned to assist 

WEDGE.  Detective Schick worked with WEDGE during their activation days in July and August. 

There were 74 incidents assigned to investigators for follow-up in July and August 2022, 37 in July and 

37 in August. Case selection has been reduced and screened due to a shortage of manpower and 

more focus has been exhausted on major cases and those involving violence against victims. 

  

                           

 

                           

38 39

29
22

42
37 37 37

67

38
32

22

32

41 39
32

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

Number of CID Cases Assigned 
Monthly

2022 2021

281
303

2022 2021

Number of CID Cases Assigned by 
Year



Following is a summary of notable investigations in July and August 2022: 

• Detective Schick conducted an extensive investigation in to a sexual assault allegation

that had been reported in delayed fashion. Detective Schick spoke with several witnesses

and a complainant, tracking down other witnesses and information in the process and

identifying a suspect. Detective Schick was ultimately able to determine from one witness

that the alleged assault occurred at their home in Oak Park. This investigation was turned

over to Oak Park Police to investigate further.

• Detective Sergeant Heveran investigated a missing persons/kidnapping report in which

two juveniles had left their home and were allegedly in Buffalo, New York. Detective

Sergeant Heveran worked with Buffalo Police and relatives in Buffalo to facilitate what

became a family dispute. A resolution was ultimately attained in which one juvenile

returned to Forest Park and the other remained in Buffalo through mutual agreement.

• Detective Schick observed a person known to him to be listed as a missing person. That

subject also had an active arrest warrant. The subject was stopped and the warrant

determined to have been quashed. He was reunited with his family who had reported him

missing.

• Lieutenant Morrissette obtained information that a vehicle that had fled a traffic stop in

Forest Park might be in Aurora, Illinois. Lieutenant Morrissette located the vehicle pulling

out of a driveway and on to the street. The vehicle was towed, and the owner’s

granddaughter met police on the street to acknowledge that her friend had fled police

while she was in the vehicle.

• Detective Schick investigated a report of a six-year-old who had come to the hospital with

a gunshot wound. Through his investigation Detective Schick was able to determine that

the child’s uncle owned the gun in question and that the child had gained access to it and

accidentally shot himself. The uncle fled the home prior to officer’s arrival. Detective

Schick was able to track him down and have him turn himself in to be charged with

Endangering the Life of a Child and Allowing a Minor to Access Firearms.

• Detective Sergeant Heveran investigated online threats that stemmed from a local mental

health facility. Detective Sergeant Heveran was able to piece together an online network of

people, including a patient at the hospital, who was discussing mass shootings and also

talking about ways to possibly do a mass shooting themselves. Through search warrants,

Detective Sergeant Heveran was able to identify people involved as well as the content of

their conversations. Although no crime has been shown to take place, proper local and

federal authorities were given full information on this investigation for informational

purposes, and parents of juveniles involved were also informed of the investigation.

• Detective Schick learned that a subject (suspected burglar) with a co-offender in burglaries

that occurred in May 2002 was in custody at River Forest Police Department. Detective

Schick interviewed the suspect, and obtained burglary charges against him.



• Detective Schick and Lieutenant Morrissette responded to a report of a deceased person 

in the woods off of Desplaines Ave. The scene was secured and processed forensically by 

WESTAF investigators that were summoned. Detectives located witnesses to piece 

together circumstances as best could be attained. The body was transported to the 

Medical Examiner’s Office, where it was determined that the victim had died of a drug 

overdose. Detective Schick was able to obtain the victim’s identity through fingerprints and 

notify family. 

 

 

Forest Park Criminal Investigations Division members are experienced and dedicated 

public servants who have built and continue to maintain professional relationships within 

the community and with neighboring agencies in an effort to quash criminal activity and to 

solve as many cases as possible.  



Accident Investigation 
Nothing to Report 

LESO 
Nothing to Report 

Special Response Team (SRT) 
There were no SRT activation for the months of July and August. 

Special Response Team Training  
The SRT did not conduct training for the months of July and August.  The next training 
date are in September and October 2022.    

Neighborhood Watch 
On July 19th the Neighborhood Watch held their monthly meeting at the Village Hall.  
Currently the total member count is at forty (40).  A total of 10-15 members attended 
this meeting.   

On August 16th Officer O’Connor lead the Neighborhood Watch members in a walk thru 
Beat 3 in Forest Park.  Member count in attendance - 10-15.   



R E S O L U T I O N  No.

BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois, 

that we dispense with the reading of the individual bills inasmuch as each department head has approved

and signed bills in the following aggregate amount for their respective departments.

Refunds and Allocations 2,951.82$   

Public Affairs 25,798.18$   

Police Department 4,341.57$   

Community Center 11,049.18$   

Accounts & Finance (Clerks Office) 14,075.70$   

Accounts & Finance (Fire Department) 24,918.47$   

Department of Health & Safety 17,268.00$   

Street Department 20,421.19$   

Public Property 33,095.65$   

Federal Customs 9,178.00$   

TIF 14,758.36$   

VIP 18,303.39$   

Water Department 201,947.64$   

TOTAL 398,107.15$   

ADOPTED BY THE Council of the Village of Forest Park this 26th Day of September, 2022.

Ayes:

Nays:

Absent:

___________________________

Rory Hoskins, Mayor

ATTEST:

___________________________

Vanessa Moritz, Village Clerk



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-00-000-4220-220  Royal Plumbing 09/07/2022 150.00         

100-00-000-4220-300  Total Parking Solutions Inc 09/09/2022 207.00         

100-00-000-4230-135  Trina Kats 09/01/2022 300.00         

100-00-000-4450-121  Passport Labs Inc 08/31/2022 99.90           

100-00-000-4450-130  Passport Labs Inc 08/31/2022 2,024.64      

100-00-000-4450-140  Passport Labs Inc 08/31/2022 90.28           

100-00-000-4510-100  David Tonazzini 09/08/2022 80.00           

Refunds and Allocations 2,951.82      



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-10-101-6120-305  Darien Marion-Burton 09/06/2022 425.00         

100-10-101-6150-112  West Central Municipal Conf 08/31/2022 14,569.68    

100-10-101-6150-202 The Blue Line 05/16/2022 447.00         

100-10-101-6150-202 Dr. Carrie Steiner First Responders Wellness Center 09/09/2022 525.00         

100-10-101-6150-202  Stanard & Associates Inc 08/29/2022 3,230.00      

100-10-101-6150-210  Hinton Law Offices LLC 08/23/2022 1,767.50      

100-11-111-6100-115  Administrative Consulting Specialists LLC 08/25/2022 625.00         

100-11-111-6100-120  Techno Consulting Inc 09/01/2022 3,500.00      

100-11-111-6110-110  Springbrook Holding Company LLC 09/06/2022 9.00             

100-11-111-6110-110  Techno Consulting Inc 09/01/2022 700.00         

Public Affairs 25,798.18    



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-00-000-2002-006  Municipal Collection Services 08/31/2022 11.10           

100-12-121-6145-305  Belmont Funeral Homes 09/26/2022 2,515.00      

100-12-121-6145-305  Metro Mortuary Transport 09/03/2022 250.00         

100-12-123-6145-202  CellTech LLC 09/01/2022 1,000.00      

100-12-124-6150-114  Thomson Reuters-West 09/01/2022 421.26         

100-12-130-6145-100  Safety Gear Corporation 08/30/2022 144.21         

Police Department 4,341.57      



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-15-154-6170-105  Burke Beverage Inc 09/12/2022 6,056.18      

100-15-154-6170-105  Leonard Branding and Design 09/08/2022 835.00         

100-15-154-6170-110  Aries Charter Transportation Inc 09/01/2022 1,386.00      

100-15-154-6170-110  Aries Charter Transportation Inc 09/01/2022 1,386.00      

100-15-154-6170-110  Aries Charter Transportation Inc 09/01/2022 1,386.00      

Community Center 11,049.18    



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-21-211-6140-104  Quill 07/28/2022 (85.74)          

100-21-211-6140-104  Quill 08/08/2022 (79.10)          

100-21-211-6140-104  Quill 08/25/2022 69.71           

100-21-211-6140-140  Quill 08/25/2022 25.07           

100-21-211-6150-112  Municipal Clerks of S/W Suburbs 09/07/2022 40.00           

100-21-211-6150-112  Municipal Clerks of S/W Suburbs 09/13/2022 60.00           

100-21-211-6150-150  AT&T 09/01/2022 590.08         

100-21-211-6150-150  AT&T 09/04/2022 83.50           

100-21-211-6150-150  AT&T LONG DISTANCE 09/04/2022 13.18           

100-21-211-6160-001  CNA Surety Direct Bill 09/07/2022 30.00           

100-21-211-6190-003  POLICE PENSION FUND 09/15/2022 5,714.29      

100-21-211-6190-004  Firefighters Pension Fund 09/15/2022 5,714.29      

100-22-221-6310-410  Administrative Consulting Specialists LLC 08/25/2022 416.66         

100-22-221-6310-410 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 08/31/2022 1,483.76      

Accounts & Finance (Clerks Office) 14,075.70    



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-30-301-7000-040  Witmer Public Safety Group 09/08/2022 181.61         

100-30-303-6100-161  Metro Paramedic Services Inc 08/10/2022 37,738.00    

100-30-303-6100-161  Metro Paramedic Services Inc 08/10/2022 (13,114.85)   

100-30-303-6145-300  Linde Gas North America LLC 08/31/2022 113.71         

Accounts & Finance (Fire Department) 24,918.47    



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-40-401-5000-017 Tariq Dandan 08/31/2022 1,320.00      

100-40-401-5000-017 Raymond Traynor 08/12/2022 450.00         

100-40-402-6100-115  Muse Community + Design 08/31/2022 5,137.50      

100-40-402-6141-003 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 08/31/2022 1,187.50      

100-40-402-6141-003 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 08/31/2022 130.00         

100-40-402-6141-003 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 08/31/2022 105.00         

100-40-402-6150-232  B&F Construction Code Service 09/01/2022 225.00         

100-40-402-6150-232 Tariq Dandan 08/31/2022 325.00         

100-40-402-6150-240  Growing Community Media NFP 09/07/2022 168.00         

100-40-403-6140-206  Smithereen Pest Mgmt Services 08/31/2022 220.00         

100-40-403-6140-206  Smithereen Pest Mgmt Services 09/01/2022 1,200.00      

100-40-403-6150-226  Cook County Dept of Public Health 08/19/2022 6,800.00      

Department of Health & Safety 17,268.00    



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-50-502-6180-160  Com Ed 08/19/2022 3,721.38      

100-50-502-6185-108  JC Licht LLC 09/01/2022 459.10         

100-50-502-6185-108  JC Licht LLC 09/02/2022 459.10         

100-50-502-6185-505  West Cook County Solid Waste 08/31/2022 15,781.61    

Street Department 20,421.19    



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-55-552-6145-100 Brandon Betancourt 09/07/2022 100.00         

100-55-552-6145-100  ULINE 08/30/2022 64.87           

100-55-552-6180-114  McAdam Landscaping 09/01/2022 368.00         

100-55-552-6180-114  McAdam Landscaping 09/07/2022 740.00         

100-55-553-6180-150  Lyons Pinner Electric Co 08/17/2022 687.00         

100-55-553-6180-150  Lyons Pinner Electric Co 08/31/2022 1,348.90      

100-55-553-6180-150  Lyons Pinner Electric Co 09/09/2022 1,606.32      

100-55-553-6180-152  Lyons Pinner Electric Co 08/31/2022 595.00         

100-55-553-6180-160  Com Ed 08/24/2022 620.54         

100-55-555-6180-100  Quill 08/25/2022 195.10         

100-55-555-6180-110  Comcast 09/02/2022 50.48           

100-55-555-6180-130  Comcast 09/01/2022 413.79         

100-55-555-6180-140  Comcast 08/22/2022 182.62         

100-55-555-6180-140  Comcast 08/28/2022 2.10             

100-55-560-6180-125  McAdam Landscaping 08/31/2022 424.00         

100-55-570-6155-101  Mohr Oil Company 09/07/2022 17,383.00    

100-55-570-6155-106  Battery Service Corporation 09/08/2022 624.75         

100-55-570-6155-106  Fleet Safety Supply 08/31/2022 40.61           

100-55-570-6155-106  Snap on Industrial 08/31/2022 178.50         

100-55-570-6155-106  Standard Equipment Co. 08/30/2022 125.02         

100-55-570-6155-106  Wholesale Direct Inc. 08/26/2022 171.72         

100-55-570-6155-106  Winter Equipment Company Inc 08/31/2022 2,163.85      

100-55-570-6155-106  Zarnoth Brush Works Inc. 08/24/2022 420.00         

100-55-570-6155-106  Zeigler Ford North Riverside 06/24/2022 109.20         

100-55-570-6155-106  Zeigler Ford North Riverside 07/11/2022 39.38           

100-55-570-6155-106  Zeigler Ford North Riverside 08/11/2022 148.66         

100-55-570-6155-106  Zeigler Ford North Riverside 08/11/2022 145.51         

100-55-570-6155-106  Zeigler Ford North Riverside 08/16/2022 111.73         

100-55-570-6155-106  Zeigler Ford North Riverside 08/19/2022 64.13           

100-55-570-6155-106  Zeigler Ford North Riverside 08/23/2022 347.54         

100-55-570-6155-106  Zeigler Ford North Riverside 08/23/2022 773.27         

100-55-570-6155-106  Zeigler Ford North Riverside 08/23/2022 63.16           

100-55-570-6155-106  Zeigler Ford North Riverside 08/25/2022 452.27         

100-55-570-6155-106  Zeigler Ford North Riverside 08/27/2022 333.40         

100-55-570-6155-106  Zeigler Ford North Riverside 08/27/2022 (75.00)          

100-55-570-6155-106  Zeigler Ford North Riverside 08/29/2022 118.20         

100-55-570-6155-106  Zeigler Ford North Riverside 08/30/2022 316.96         



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-55-570-6155-110  Snap on Industrial 08/27/2022 178.50         

100-55-570-6155-110  Snap on Industrial 09/03/2022 53.00           

100-55-570-6155-112  Commercial Tire Service 08/31/2022 299.50         

100-55-570-6155-112  Commercial Tire Service 09/02/2022 979.95         

100-55-580-6180-302  First Ayd Corp. 08/30/2022 130.12         

Public Property 33,095.65    



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

232-00-000-6900-232  Administrative Consulting Specialists LLC 08/25/2022 625.00         

232-00-000-6900-232  Comcast 08/22/2022 140.44         

232-00-000-6900-232  IL Homicide Investigators Associations 09/09/2022 750.00         

232-00-000-6900-232  J.G. Uniforms 09/09/2022 880.00         

232-00-000-6900-232  J.G. Uniforms 09/09/2022 880.00         

232-00-000-6900-232  KIESLER'S POLICE SUPPLY INC. 05/26/2022 2,070.00      

232-00-000-6900-232 Motorola Solutions StarCom21 Network 09/01/2022 110.00         

232-00-000-6900-232  Northwest Police Academy 08/31/2022 75.00           

232-00-000-6900-232 Ray O'Herron Co Inc 09/02/2022 1,333.58      

232-00-000-6900-232 Ray O'Herron Co Inc 09/08/2022 2,313.98      

Federal Customs 9,178.00      



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

302-00-000-6185-700 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 08/31/2022 2,858.51      

302-00-000-6185-700  Doty Nurseries LLC. 07/26/2022 4,275.00      

302-00-000-6185-700 K-Five Hodgkins LLC 09/01/2022 44.85           

304-00-000-6185-700 Irrigation Systems Halloran & Yauch Inc 08/29/2022 7,580.00      

TIF 14,758.36    



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

312-00-000-6100-105 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 08/31/2022 3,851.14      

312-00-000-7000-107 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 09/06/2022 7,144.75      

312-00-000-7000-108 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 08/31/2022 852.50         

312-00-000-7000-108  Growing Community Media NFP 08/30/2022 126.00         

312-00-000-7000-120 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 08/31/2022 1,780.00      

312-00-000-7000-312 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 08/31/2022 525.00         

312-00-000-7000-312 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 08/31/2022 3,955.00      

312-00-000-7000-312 K-Five Hodgkins LLC 08/31/2022 69.00           

VIP 18,303.39    



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

501-80-800-6110-105  Springbrook Holding Company LLC 09/06/2022 706.00         

501-80-800-6150-154  Com Ed 08/29/2022 46.79           

501-80-800-6800-100  City of Chicago 09/09/2022 174,808.31  

501-80-800-6800-151  Franzen Plumbing INC 09/06/2022 1,400.00      

501-80-800-6800-152  The Hydrant Doctor 08/29/2022 3,598.00      

501-80-800-7000-010 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 08/31/2022 13,997.55    

501-80-800-7000-020 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 08/31/2022 945.00         

501-80-800-7000-020 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 08/31/2022 6,040.00      

501-80-800-7000-020  Clear View 09/07/2022 405.99         

Water Department 201,947.64  



AGENDA MEMO 

Village Council Meeting 

Forest Park, Illinois 

September 26, 2022 

Issue Statement  

Request for Village Council Action: Adoption of an Ordinance Authorizing the Approval of a Joint Purchasing 
Requisition for the Purchase of Three (3) 2023 Base Ford Explorer Police Vehicles for the Village of Forest 
Park Police Department 

Background 

The Forest Park Police Department has submitted a request to purchase/pre-order three (3) vehicles under the 
State of Illinois Joint Purchasing Program.  It is anticipated that said vehicles will not be delivered and put into 
use until sometime in 2023.   

The quoted price reflects the base purchase price of the vehicles ($137,284 in total - $45,761.00 each); said sum 
does not include their total buildout price.   

ARPA funds are being targeted for this purchase; use of ARPA funds to purchase police vehicles is a permitted 
expense under ARPA.   

The Police Department will need to submit additional pricing in the future to reflect the cost of the vehicles’ 
build-out.  Authorization for same, should tonight’s purchase be approved, will need to be given by the Council 
at a future meeting. 

Attachments 

1. Chief Memo
2. Ordinance Authorizing Purchase
3. State of IL Joint Purchasing Program Price Quote for Vehicles





1088276_1 

ORDINANCE NO. O-_________-22 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE APPROVAL OF A  
JOINT PURCHASING REQUISITION FOR THE PURCHASE  

OF THREE (3) 2023 BASE FORD EXPLORER POLICE VEHICLES  
FOR THE VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK POLICE DEPARTMENT 

WHEREAS, the Village of Forest Park (“Village”) requires and has budgeted for the 

acquisition of three (3) police vehicles for the Village’s Police Department; and 

WHEREAS, the Village solicited proposals through the State of Illinois Joint Purchasing 

Master Contract and received a quote for the purchase of three (3) 2023 base Ford Explorers 

from Sutton Ford; and 

WHEREAS, in the opinion of a majority of the corporate authorities of the Village, it is 

advisable, necessary and in the public interest that the Village waive bid and the purchasing 

requirements set forth in the Village code and submit a purchase order to purchase three (3) 2023 

base Ford Explorers, to be used by the Village’s Police Department; and 

WHEREAS, after due consideration, a majority of the corporate authorities find it in the 

Village’s best interest to purchase three (3) 2023 base Ford Explorers from Sutton Ford, with the 

total base vehicle cost estimated to be not more than One Hundred Thirty-Seven Thousand Two 

Hundred Eighty-Four Dollars ($137,284.00). 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council of the Village of 

Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois, as follows: 

Section 1. The facts and statements contained in the preambles to this Ordinance are 

found to be true and correct and are hereby adopted as part of this Ordinance. 

Section 2. The corporate authorities of the Village waive bid and the purchasing 

requirements set forth in the Village Code to authorize the purchase order for three (3) 2023 base 

Ford Explorers, as Police Department vehicles, through the State of Illinois Joint Purchasing 



1088276_1 

Master Contract from Sutton Ford, in the estimated amount not to exceed One Hundred Thirty-

Seven Thousand Two Hundred Eighty-Four Dollars ($137,284.00), pursuant to the proposal 

attached as Exhibit A and made a part hereof. 

 Section 3. The Village Administrator is hereby authorized to have executed on behalf 

of the Village the purchase order and all other necessary forms, applications, requisitions, and 

other documents related to the purchase of three (3) 2023 base Ford Explorers, as base Police 

Department vehicles, from Sutton Ford through the State of Illinois Joint Purchasing Master 

Contract. 

 Section 4. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon its passage and 

approval in accordance with law. 

PASSED AND APPROVED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, 

Illinois this 26th day of September, 2022. 

AYES:         

NAYS:         

ABSENT:         
 
      APPROVED: 
 
 
             
      Mayor Rory E. Hoskins 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________   
Vanessa Moritz, Village Clerk 



1088276_1 

EXHIBIT A 

SUTTON FORD QUOTE 



2023 Police Interceptor Utility AWD (K8A)

Sutton Ford Inc. | 21315 Central Avenue, Matteson, Illinois, 604432893

1

State of Illinois Joint Purchasing Master Contract
22-416CMS-BOSS4-B-27256

Police Pursuit and Special Service Vehicles



Prices and content availability as shown are subject to change and should be treated as estimates only. Actual base vehicle, package and option pricing

may vary from this estimate because of special local pricing, availability or pricing adjustments not reflected in the dealer’s computer system. See

salesperson for the most current information.

Sutton Ford Inc. | 21315 Central Avenue Matteson Illinois | 604432893

2023 Police Interceptor Utility AWD (K8A) 

As Configured Vehicle
Code Description

Base Vehicle

K8A Base Vehicle Price (K8A)

Packages

500A Order Code 500A
Includes:
- GVWR: 6,840 lbs (3,103 kgs)
- Tires: 255/60R18 AS BSW
- Wheels: 18" x 8" 5-Spoke Painted Black Steel
Includes polished stainless steel hub cover and center caps.

- Unique HD Cloth Front Bucket Seats w/Vinyl Rear
Includes reduced bolsters, driver 6-way power track (fore/aft. up/down,

tilt with manual recline, 2-way manual lumbar), passenger 2-way manual
track (fore/aft. with manual recline) and built-in steel intrusion plates in
both driver/passenger seatbacks.
- Radio: AM/FM/MP3 Capable
Includes clock, 4-speakers, Bluetooth interface with hands-free voice

command support (compatible with most Bluetooth connected mobile
devices), 1 USB port and 4.2" color LCD screen center stack smart
display.

Powertrain

99C Engine: 3.0L V6 EcoBoost
(148-MPH top speed). Note: Deletes regenerative braking and lithium-ion
battery pack; adds 250-Amp alternator, replaces H7 AGM battery (800
CCA/80-amp) with H7 SLI battery (730 CCA/80-amp) and replaces 19-
gallon tank with 21.4-gallon.

Includes:
- 3.31 Axle Ratio

44U Transmission: 10-Speed Automatic (44U)

NONAX 3.31 Axle Ratio

STDGV GVWR: 6,840 lbs (3,103 kgs)

Wheels & Tires

STDTR Tires: 255/60R18 AS BSW

STDWL Wheels: 18" x 8" 5-Spoke Painted Black Steel
Includes polished stainless steel hub cover and center caps.

Seats & Seat Trim

9 Unique HD Cloth Front Bucket Seats w/Vinyl Rear

2



Prices and content availability as shown are subject to change and should be treated as estimates only. Actual base vehicle, package and option pricing

may vary from this estimate because of special local pricing, availability or pricing adjustments not reflected in the dealer’s computer system. See

salesperson for the most current information.

Sutton Ford Inc. | 21315 Central Avenue Matteson Illinois | 604432893

2023 Police Interceptor Utility AWD (K8A) 

As Configured Vehicle (cont'd)
Code Description

Includes reduced bolsters, driver 6-way power track (fore/aft. up/down, tilt
with manual recline, 2-way manual lumbar), passenger 2-way manual
track (fore/aft. with manual recline) and built-in steel intrusion plates in
both driver/passenger seatbacks.

Other Options

PAINT Monotone Paint Application

119WB 119" Wheelbase

STDRD Radio: AM/FM/MP3 Capable
Includes clock, 4-speakers, Bluetooth interface with hands-free voice
command support (compatible with most Bluetooth connected mobile
devices), 1 USB port and 4.2" color LCD screen center stack smart
display.

66A Front Headlamp Lighting Solution

Recommend using ultimate wiring package (67U).

Includes LED low beam/high beam headlamp, wig-wag function and (2)
red/blue/white LED side warning lights in each headlamp (factory
configured: driver's side white/red/passenger side white/blue). Wiring and
LED lights included (in headlamps only; grille lights not included).
Controller not included.

Includes:
- Grille LED Lights, Siren & Speaker Pre-Wiring

86T Tail Lamp/Police Interceptor Housing Only
Pre-existing holes with standard twist lock sealed capability (does not
include LED strobe) (eliminates need to drill housing assemblies).

67U Ultimate Wiring Package

Recommend police wire harness connector kit (67V).

Includes wiring harness instrument panel to rear cargo area (overlay), (2)
light cables - supports up to (6) LED lights (engine compartment/grille), (1)
10-amp siren/speaker circuit engine compartment and rear hatch/cargo
area wiring - supports up to (6) rear LED lights. Does not include LED
lights, side connectors or controller.

Includes:
- Rear Console Plate
Contours through 2nd row; channel for wiring.

- Grille LED Lights, Siren & Speaker Pre-Wiring

67V Front & Rear Police Wire Harness Connector Kit
For connectivity to Ford PI Package solutions includes front (2) male 4-pin
connectors for siren, (5) female 4-pin connectors for
lighting/siren/speaker, (1) 4-pin IP connector for speakers, (1) 4-pin IP
connector for siren controller connectivity, (1) 8-pin sealed connector, (1)
14-pin IP connector, rear (2) male 4-pin connectors for siren, (5) female 4-
pin connectors for lighting/siren/speaker, (1) 4-pin IP connector for
speakers, (1) 4-pin IP connector for siren controller connectivity, (1) 8-pin
sealed connector and (1) 14-pin IP connector.

43D Dark Car Feature
Courtesy lamps disabled when any door is opened.

3



Prices and content availability as shown are subject to change and should be treated as estimates only. Actual base vehicle, package and option pricing

may vary from this estimate because of special local pricing, availability or pricing adjustments not reflected in the dealer’s computer system. See

salesperson for the most current information.

Sutton Ford Inc. | 21315 Central Avenue Matteson Illinois | 604432893

2023 Police Interceptor Utility AWD (K8A) 

As Configured Vehicle (cont'd)
Code Description

21L Front Warning Auxiliary LED Lights

Recommend using ready for the road package (67H) or
ultimate wiring package (67U).

Includes driver side - red/passenger side - blue.

60A Grille LED Lights, Siren & Speaker Pre-Wiring

51R Driver Only LED Spot Lamp (Unity)

68G Rear-Door Controls Inoperable
Locks, handles and windows. Note: Can manually remove window or door
disable plate with special tool. Note: Locks/windows operable from
driver's door switches.

55F Remote Keyless Entry Key Fob w/o Key Pad
Does not include PATS. Includes 4-key fobs. Key fobs are not fobbed
alike when ordered with keyed-alike.

59E Keyed Alike - 1435x

85R Rear Console Plate
Contours through 2nd row; channel for wiring.

549 Heated Sideview Mirrors

47A Police Engine Idle Feature
This feature allows you to leave the engine running and prevents your
vehicle from unauthorized use when outside of your vehicle. Allows the
key to be removed from ignition while vehicle remains idling.

16D Badge Delete
Deletes the Police Interceptor badging on rear liftgate and the Interceptor
badging on front hood (EcoBoost).

60R Noise Suppression Bonds (Ground Straps)

18X 100 Watt Siren/Speaker w/Bracket & Pigtail

61B OBD-II Split Connector
Allows up to 2 devices to be connected to the vehicle's OBD-II port.

Emissions

425 50 State Emission System

Flexible Fuel Vehicle (FFV) system is standard equipment
for vehicles equipped with the 3.3L V6 Direct-Injection
engine.

Interior Color

4



Prices and content availability as shown are subject to change and should be treated as estimates only. Actual base vehicle, package and option pricing

may vary from this estimate because of special local pricing, availability or pricing adjustments not reflected in the dealer’s computer system. See

salesperson for the most current information.

Sutton Ford Inc. | 21315 Central Avenue Matteson Illinois | 604432893

2023 Police Interceptor Utility AWD (K8A) 

As Configured Vehicle (cont'd)
Code Description

96_01 Charcoal Black w/Unique HD Cloth Front Bucket Seats
w/Vinyl Rear

Exterior Color

UM_01 Agate Black

5

Vehicle Pricing with Spot light: $45,885

Vehicle Pricing without Spot light: $45,514

Quantity 
2

1

Total 

$45,514

$91,770

$137,284Total:



AGENDA MEMO 

Village Council Meeting 

Forest Park, Illinois 

September 26, 2022 

Issue Statement  

Request for Village Council Action: Adoption of a Resolution Authorizing the Award for the 15th Street Sewer 
Separation Project Contract to John Neri Construction Co., Inc. 

Background 

To recap this project’s history: 

- Forest Park was awarded $360,000 in CDBG funding to install a dedicated 48” storm sewer on 15th

Street between Circle Avenue and Marengo Avenue; said sewer will connect to the mainline sewer that
runs north and south on Circle Avenue.  Further, a future connection stub will be put in place to allow
for additional storm sewer connections to take place in the future – easterly of Marengo Avenue (grant
application has already been filed with the County);

- Initial project estimate (2021) amounted to $400,000 including Phase III engineering fees;
- A bid opening for the project took place on April 27, 2022.  The low bidder was Uno Construction

Company at $392,450.50;
- Following award of contract, Uno had been unsuccessful in obtaining a Federal DUNS Number for their

company.  This is required as federal monies are being used for this project;
- Cook County advised the Village that in light of same, the Village shall award the contract to the second

lowest responsible bidder, or, shall rebid the project.  Since the second lowest bidder’s bid price was
$112,000 more than Uno’s bid, a decision was made to rebid the project;

- A bid opening for the project took place on September 13, 2022.  The lower bidder for the project (same
specifications) was John Neri Construction Co. at $440,215.80.

With Phase III engineering costs amounting to $26,110, the Village’s out of pocket costs for this project will 
increase from $40,000 to now approximately $106,325. 

It is recommended that the Village Council award this contract.  For one, it is believed that should this project 
be rebid in 2023, that the cost of same will not decrease under the $440K amount.  Secondly, this is a priority 
project, as it will provide flood relief in said area during larger rain events.  The new 48” storm sewer will 
provide additional 350’ x 48” of compensatory storage during such large rain events; storm water run off now 
discharges into a combined sewer in said area.  In discussions with the Village Finance Director, these 
additional $60,000 of VIP monies will be $60,000 less that the Village has to spend out of its VIP fund 
following the conclusion of this fiscal year.  In light of the fact that project costs most likely will not be going 
down anytime soon, staff recommends the pursuit of this flood relief effort. 

Attachments 

- Village Engineer Letter/Bid Tabulations
- Resolution Approving Acceptance of Bid and Authorizing Award of Contract



1088609_1  

RESOLUTION NO. R-____________-22 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE AWARD FOR THE 15TH STREET SEWER 
SEPARATION PROJECT CONTRACT TO JOHN NERI CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Village of Forest Park previously approved specifications and re-

advertised for bids for the 15th Street Sewer Separation Project ("Project"); and 

 WHEREAS, on September 13, 2022, at 10:00 a.m., the bid results were publicly opened, 

read aloud and six (6) bids were received and reviewed by the Village staff and Christopher B. 

Burke Engineering, Ltd., Village Engineer: 

 COMPANY BID 
- ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE $449,963.00 
1 John Neri Construction Co., Inc. $440,215.80 
2 H. Linden & Sons Sewer and Water, Inc. $456,700.00 
3 Mauro Sewer Construction, Inc. $458,959.00 
4 MQ Construction, Inc. $473,023.30 
5 Bolder Contractors, Inc. $474,981.50 
6 Trine Construction Corp. $489,500.00 

 
 WHEREAS, John Neri Construction Co., Inc. was the apparent lowest responsible and 

qualified bidder for the Project and provided the correct forms required for the Project, including 

its bid bond and specifications; and 

 WHEREAS, the bid documents have been reviewed by Christopher B. Burke 

Engineering, Ltd., the Village Engineer, which determined John Neri Construction Co., Inc. to be 

a lowest responsible and qualified bidder for the bid, pursuant to Village requirements and 

conditions, and recommends to the Village Council that the award of contract for the Project be 

made to John Neri Construction Co., Inc. for the bid in the amount of Four Hundred Forty 

Thousand Two Hundred Fifteen and 80/100 Dollars ($440,215.80); and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council of the Village of Forest Park have determined that it 

is in the best interest of the Village to award the contract for the Project to the lowest responsible 

and qualified bidder, John Neri Construction Co., Inc., for the bid in the amount of Four Hundred 

Forty Thousand Two Hundred Fifteen and 80/100 Dollars ($440,215.80); and 

 WHEREAS, it is necessary that the Mayor of the Village of Forest Park execute and file 

the appropriate documents and sign any and all documents necessary for the awarding of the 

contract to John Neri Construction Co., Inc., pursuant to the bid for the Project, and that the 

Village Clerk attest to the Mayor's signature on said documents. 



1088609_1  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, 

Cook County, Illinois, as follows: 

Section 1. The Council of the Village of Forest Park finds that it is in the best interest 

of the Village to award the contract for the Project to the lowest responsible and qualified bidder, 

John Neri Construction Co., Inc., for the bid in the amount of Four Hundred Forty Thousand 

Two Hundred Fifteen and 80/100 Dollars ($440,215.80), with participation grant funding from 

Cook County through the Community Development Block Grant funding to the Village for the 

Project, for the amount not to exceed amount of Three Hundred Sixty Thousand and 00/100 

Dollars ($360,000.00). 

Section 2. The Mayor and the Village Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to 

execute and attest, respectively, any and all documents necessary to award the contract for the 

Project to the lowest responsible and qualified bidder, John Neri Construction Co., Inc., for the 

bid in the amount of Four Hundred Forty Thousand Two Hundred Fifteen and 80/100 Dollars 

($440,215.80). 

PASSED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois this 26th day 
of September, 2022. 

AYES:  ___________________ 
NAYS:  ___________________ 
ABSENT:  _________________ 

APPROVED by me this 26th day of September, 2022. 

___________________________________
Rory E. Hoskins, Mayor 

ATTESTED and filed in my office, 
and published in pamphlet form 
this ______ day of September, 2022. 

_____________________________________ 
Vanessa Moritz, Village Clerk 



N:\FORESTPARK\0023\BG104\ADMIN\L1.RECOMMENDATION OF AWARD_15TH STREET SEWER SEPARATION.091422.DOC 

September 14, 2022 

Village of Forest Park 
517 Des Plaines Avenue 
Forest Park, Illinois 60130 

Attention: Moses Amidei, ICMA-CM – Village Administrator 

Subject: 15th Street Sewer Separation Project 
Bid Results / Recommendation of Award 
(CBBEL Project No. 00-23BG0104) 

Dear Mr. Amidei: 

On Tuesday, September 13, 2022 at 10:00 a.m. bids were received at the Village of Forest 
Park, Village Hall and opened for the 15th Street Sewer Separation Project.  Six (6) bids were 
received for this project.  The bids have been reviewed and tabulated and are as follows. 

COMPANY BID 
- ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE $ 449,963.00 
1 JOHN NERI CONST. CO. INC. $ 440,215.80 
2 H. LINDEN & SONS SEWER AND WATER, INC. $ 456,700.00 
3 MAURO SEWER CONSTRUCTION, INC. $ 458,959.00 
4 MQ CONST. INC. $ 473,023.30 
5 BOLDER CONTRACTORS, INC. $ 474,981.50 
6 TRINE CONST. CORP. $ 489,500.00 

John Neri Construction Co. Inc. is the low bidder with a bid of $440,215.80. We have reviewed 
their bid document and find it to be in order. We have worked with John Neri Construction Co. 
Inc. previously and they appear qualified to perform this work.  

Please note that this project is receiving $360,000.00 of funding from Cook County through 
the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG). Enclosed for your review is the bid 
tabulation. If you have any further questions, please do not hesitate to contact me. 

Sincerely, 

James F. Amelio, PE 
Senior Project Manager 

cc: Sal Stella – Village of Forest Park 



FOREST PARK - 15TH STREET SEWER SEPARATION PROJECT
Cost Estimate
Design Firm Name: Christopher B. Burke Engineering
Design Firm Project #: 0023.BG104
Date: 9/13/2022

SP PAY ITEM NUMBER PAY ITEM NAME UNIT OF MEASURE TOTAL QUANTITY UNIT PRICE COST UNIT PRICE COST UNIT PRICE COST UNIT PRICE COST UNIT PRICE COST UNIT PRICE COST UNIT PRICE COST
20101100 TREE TRUNK PROTECTION EACH 8 150.00$           1,200.00$      $175.00 1,400.00$       $450.00 3,600.00$       $100.00 800.00$          $150.00 1,200.00$       $250.00 2,000.00$       $172.50 1,380.00$       
20200100 EARTH EXCAVATION CU YD 70 60.00$             4,200.00$      $45.00 3,150.00$       $44.00 3,080.00$       $50.00 3,500.00$       $90.00 6,300.00$       $55.00 3,850.00$       $44.75 3,132.50$       
20201200 REMOVAL AND DISPOSAL OF UNSUITABLE MATERIAL CU YD 35 125.00$           4,375.00$      $40.00 1,400.00$       $60.00 2,100.00$       $35.00 1,225.00$       $90.00 3,150.00$       $42.00 1,470.00$       $44.75 1,566.25$       
20700220 POROUS GRANULAR EMBANKMENT CU YD 35 50.00$             1,750.00$      $45.00 1,575.00$       $31.00 1,085.00$       $20.00 700.00$          $75.00 2,625.00$       $60.00 2,100.00$       $58.45 2,045.75$       
20800150 TRENCH BACKFILL CU YD 320 50.00$             16,000.00$   $45.00 14,400.00$     $30.00 9,600.00$       $30.00 9,600.00$       $1.00 320.00$          $0.01 3.20$              $60.25 19,280.00$     
21101615 TOPSOIL FURNISH AND PLACE,  4" SQ YD 500 10.00$             5,000.00$      $14.00 7,000.00$       $10.50 5,250.00$       $25.00 12,500.00$     $8.00 4,000.00$       $4.00 2,000.00$       $11.50 5,750.00$       
25200110 SODDING, SALT TOLERANT SQ YD 500 25.00$             12,500.00$   $15.00 7,500.00$       $21.00 10,500.00$     $32.00 16,000.00$     $12.00 6,000.00$       $6.00 3,000.00$       $17.25 8,625.00$       
25200200 SUPPLEMENTAL WATERING UNIT 2 30.00$             60.00$           $10.00 20.00$            $50.00 100.00$          $250.00 500.00$          $100.00 200.00$          $50.00 100.00$          $287.50 575.00$          
28000510 INLET FILTERS EACH 10 200.00$           2,000.00$      $200.00 2,000.00$       $400.00 4,000.00$       $150.00 1,500.00$       $150.00 1,500.00$       $50.00 500.00$          $86.25 862.50$          
31101180 SUBBASE GRANULAR MATERIAL, TYPE B 2" SQ YD 60 15.00$             900.00$         $4.00 240.00$          $2.00 120.00$          $8.00 480.00$          $8.00 480.00$          $7.00 420.00$          $8.45 507.00$          
31101200 SUBBASE GRANULAR MATERIAL, TYPE B 4" SQ YD 45 18.00$             810.00$         $6.00 270.00$          $4.00 180.00$          $10.00 450.00$          $9.00 405.00$          $9.00 405.00$          $11.85 533.25$          
31101400 SUBBASE GRANULAR MATERIAL, TYPE B 6" SQ YD 1175 25.00$             29,375.00$   $8.50 9,987.50$       $11.00 12,925.00$     $12.00 14,100.00$     $9.50 11,162.50$     $11.00 12,925.00$     $15.10 17,742.50$     
35102000 AGGREGATE BASE COURSE, TYPE B 8" SQ YD 20 20.00$             400.00$         $12.00 240.00$          $17.00 340.00$          $30.00 600.00$          $15.00 300.00$          $13.00 260.00$          $18.35 367.00$          
35800100 PREPARATION OF BASE SQ YD 1175 4.00$               4,700.00$      $4.00 4,700.00$       $2.00 2,350.00$       $3.50 4,112.50$       $4.50 5,287.50$       $1.00 1,175.00$       $9.45 11,103.75$     
40201000 AGGREGATE FOR TEMPORARY ACCESS TON 10 40.00$             400.00$         $20.00 200.00$          $29.00 290.00$          $60.00 600.00$          $25.00 250.00$          $50.00 500.00$          $65.35 653.50$          
40600290 BITUMINOUS MATERIALS (TACK COAT) POUND 830 0.10$               83.00$           $0.01 8.30$              $0.50 415.00$          $0.05 41.50$            $0.01 8.30$              $0.01 8.30$              $0.01 8.30$              
40603080 HOT-MIX ASPHALT BINDER COURSE, IL-19.0, N50 TON 180 125.00$           22,500.00$   $152.00 27,360.00$     $181.00 32,580.00$     $150.00 27,000.00$     $171.00 30,780.00$     $162.00 29,160.00$     $185.25 33,345.00$     
40604060 HOT-MIX ASPHALT SURFACE COURSE, IL-9.5, MIX "D", N50 TON 110 125.00$           13,750.00$   $174.00 19,140.00$     $210.00 23,100.00$     $175.00 19,250.00$     $215.00 23,650.00$     $199.00 21,890.00$     $228.25 25,107.50$     
42300200 PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE DRIVEWAY PAVEMENT,  6 INCH SQ YD 10 100.00$           1,000.00$      $175.00 1,750.00$       $120.00 1,200.00$       $150.00 1,500.00$       $100.00 1,000.00$       $150.00 1,500.00$       $109.25 1,092.50$       
42400200 PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE SIDEWALK 5 INCH SQ FT 500 15.00$             7,500.00$      $18.00 9,000.00$       $13.00 6,500.00$       $18.00 9,000.00$       $13.00 6,500.00$       $12.00 6,000.00$       $10.65 5,325.00$       
42400800 DETECTABLE WARNINGS SQ FT 50 40.00$             2,000.00$      $75.00 3,750.00$       $45.00 2,250.00$       $75.00 3,750.00$       $50.00 2,500.00$       $40.00 2,000.00$       $54.65 2,732.50$       
44000100 PAVEMENT REMOVAL SQ YD 1175 22.00$             25,850.00$   $24.00 28,200.00$     $27.00 31,725.00$     $13.00 15,275.00$     $19.00 22,325.00$     $12.00 14,100.00$     $30.15 35,426.25$     
44000200 DRIVEWAY PAVEMENT REMOVAL SQ YD 20 25.00$             500.00$         $25.00 500.00$          $30.00 600.00$          $30.00 600.00$          $20.00 400.00$          $20.00 400.00$          $13.80 276.00$          
44000500 COMBINATION CURB AND GUTTER REMOVAL FOOT 250 7.00$               1,750.00$      $6.00 1,500.00$       $12.00 3,000.00$       $12.00 3,000.00$       $10.00 2,500.00$       $8.00 2,000.00$       $9.20 2,300.00$       
44000600 SIDEWALK REMOVAL SQ FT 500 2.50$               1,250.00$      $3.00 1,500.00$       $2.00 1,000.00$       $30.00 15,000.00$     $2.50 1,250.00$       $2.50 1,250.00$       $2.90 1,450.00$       
550A0050 STORM SEWERS, CLASS A, TYPE 1   12" FOOT 160 125.00$           20,000.00$   $95.00 15,200.00$     $48.00 7,680.00$       $75.00 12,000.00$     $147.00 23,520.00$     $120.00 19,200.00$     $123.75 19,800.00$     
550A0480 STORM SEWERS, CLASS A, TYPE 2   48" FOOT 350 300.00$           105,000.00$ $330.00 115,500.00$   $222.00 77,700.00$     $300.00 105,000.00$   $320.00 112,000.00$   $300.00 105,000.00$   $234.05 81,917.50$     

* 56106600 ADJUSTING WATER MAIN, 12" FOOT 22 305.00$           6,710.00$      $425.00 9,350.00$       $400.00 8,800.00$       $200.00 4,400.00$       $935.00 20,570.00$     $500.00 11,000.00$     $583.85 12,844.70$     
60200105 CATCH BASINS, TYPE A, 4'-DIAMETER, TYPE 1 FRAME, OPEN LID EACH 7 3,500.00$        24,500.00$   $4,200.00 29,400.00$     $6,000.00 42,000.00$     $3,550.00 24,850.00$     $3,700.00 25,900.00$     $6,000.00 42,000.00$     $7,155.25 50,086.75$     
60218400 MANHOLES, TYPE A, 4'-DIAMETER, TYPE 1 FRAME, CLOSED LID EACH 1 7,000.00$        7,000.00$      $4,350.00 4,350.00$       $13,000.00 13,000.00$     $4,000.00 4,000.00$       $6,500.00 6,500.00$       $6,000.00 6,000.00$       $5,355.00 5,355.00$       
60224446 MANHOLES, TYPE A, 7'-DIAMETER, TYPE 1 FRAME, CLOSED LID EACH 1 10,000.00$      10,000.00$   $9,850.00 9,850.00$       $16,000.00 16,000.00$     $15,000.00 15,000.00$     $16,000.00 16,000.00$     $16,000.00 16,000.00$     $11,255.00 11,255.00$     
60224459 MANHOLES, TYPE A, 8'-DIAMETER, TYPE 1 FRAME, CLOSED LID EACH 2 12,000.00$      24,000.00$   $11,800.00 23,600.00$     $21,000.00 42,000.00$     $16,000.00 32,000.00$     $22,000.00 44,000.00$     $20,000.00 40,000.00$     $17,160.75 34,321.50$     
60406000 FRAMES AND LIDS, TYPE 1, OPEN LID EACH 2 500.00$           1,000.00$      $450.00 900.00$          $600.00 1,200.00$       $500.00 1,000.00$       $400.00 800.00$          $310.00 620.00$          $345.00 690.00$          
60406100 FRAMES AND LIDS, TYPE 1, CLOSED LID EACH 2 500.00$           1,000.00$      $450.00 900.00$          $600.00 1,200.00$       $500.00 1,000.00$       $420.00 840.00$          $310.00 620.00$          $345.00 690.00$          
60500040 REMOVING MANHOLES EACH 1 700.00$           700.00$         $900.00 900.00$          $2,100.00 2,100.00$       $500.00 500.00$          $500.00 500.00$          $500.00 500.00$          $389.00 389.00$          
60500050 REMOVING CATCH BASINS EACH 6 500.00$           3,000.00$      $500.00 3,000.00$       $1,000.00 6,000.00$       $550.00 3,300.00$       $50.00 300.00$          $500.00 3,000.00$       $389.00 2,334.00$       
60603800 COMBINATION CONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER, TYPE B-6.12 FOOT 250 35.00$             8,750.00$      $60.00 15,000.00$     $39.00 9,750.00$       $70.00 17,500.00$     $35.00 8,750.00$       $50.00 12,500.00$     $40.25 10,062.50$     
78000400 THERMOPLASTIC PAVEMENT MARKING - LINE  6" FOOT 150 4.00$               600.00$         $15.00 2,250.00$       $11.00 1,650.00$       $15.00 2,250.00$       $12.00 1,800.00$       $15.00 2,250.00$       $17.25 2,587.50$       
78000650 THERMOPLASTIC PAVEMENT MARKING - LINE 24" FOOT 50 10.00$             500.00$         $20.00 1,000.00$       $24.00 1,200.00$       $25.00 1,250.00$       $48.00 2,400.00$       $25.00 1,250.00$       $23.00 1,150.00$       

* X0327172 REMOVE AND REPLACE SIGN AND SUPPORTS EACH 4 400.00$           1,600.00$      $450.00 1,800.00$       $400.00 1,600.00$       $400.00 1,600.00$       $300.00 1,200.00$       $400.00 1,600.00$       $287.50 1,150.00$       
* X0327368 SANITARY SEWER, DUCTILE IRON,  12" FOOT 20 175.00$           3,500.00$      $250.00 5,000.00$       $100.00 2,000.00$       $150.00 3,000.00$       $300.00 6,000.00$       $400.00 8,000.00$       $368.50 7,370.00$       
* X7010216 TRAFFIC CONTROL AND PROTECTION, (SPECIAL) L SUM 1 25,000.00$      25,000.00$   $14,500.00 14,500.00$     $12,750.00 12,750.00$     $20,000.00 20,000.00$     $10,000.00 10,000.00$     $40,000.00 40,000.00$     $10,865.00 10,865.00$     
* Z0004510 HOT-MIX ASPHALT DRIVEWAY PAVEMENT, 3" SQ YD 10 75.00$             750.00$         $120.00 1,200.00$       $250.00 2,500.00$       $125.00 1,250.00$       $250.00 2,500.00$       $250.00 2,500.00$       $235.15 2,351.50$       
* Z0013798 CONSTRUCTION LAYOUT L SUM 1 5,000.00$        5,000.00$      $6,000.00 6,000.00$       $7,000.00 7,000.00$       $7,000.00 7,000.00$       $1,500.00 1,500.00$       $7,000.00 7,000.00$       $9,855.00 9,855.00$       
* Z0018400 DRAINAGE STRUCTURES TO BE ADJUSTED EACH 5 1,200.00$        6,000.00$      $400.00 2,000.00$       $400.00 2,000.00$       $600.00 3,000.00$       $700.00 3,500.00$       $900.00 4,500.00$       $580.00 2,900.00$       
* Z0067700 STEEL CASINGS, 20" FOOT 25 300.00$           7,500.00$      $225.00 5,625.00$       $280.00 7,000.00$       $175.00 4,375.00$       $350.00 8,750.00$       $225.00 5,625.00$       $202.70 5,067.50$       
* N/A COMBINED SEWER REMOVAL AND REPLACEMENT, 12" FOOT 12 250.00$           3,000.00$      $275.00 3,300.00$       $140.00 1,680.00$       $300.00 3,600.00$       $300.00 3,600.00$       $400.00 4,800.00$       $368.55 4,422.60$       
* N/A CONFLICT MANHOLE, 8' DIAMETER EACH 1 15,000.00$      15,000.00$   $12,800.00 12,800.00$     $22,000.00 22,000.00$     $20,000.00 20,000.00$     $28,000.00 28,000.00$     $22,000.00 22,000.00$     $20,847.90 20,847.90$     
* N/A ITEMS ORDERED BY ENGINEER DOLLAR 10000 1.00$               10,000.00$   $1.00 10,000.00$     $1.00 10,000.00$     $1.00 10,000.00$     $1.00 10,000.00$     $1.00 10,000.00$     $1.00 10,000.00$     

TOTAL 449,963.00$ $440,215.80 $456,700.00 $458,959.00 $473,023.30 $474,981.50 $489,500.00

CDBG GRANT 360,000.00$ 

BOLDER CONTRACTORS, INC. TRINE CONST. CORP.MQ CONST. INC.ENGINEERS ESTIMATE JOHN NERI CONST. CO. INC. CERNIGLIA CO. MAURO SEWER CONST. INC.

N:\FORESTPARK\0023\BG104\Civil\Spreadsheets\000023BG104_Bid Tabulation.rebid.091322.xlsx



Forest Park Police Department Field Services 

Memorandum 

TO: �ayor Hoskins; Mo es Amedei 

FROM: Chief Ken Gross 

DATE: 21Sep22 

SUBJECT: Promotions and Probationary Police Officer - Lt. Morrissette 
Retirement 

Lt. Morrissette announced that after twenty-six years of employment with the 
Forest Park Police Department, he is retiring. His final day of employment with 
the Village of Forest Park will be November 15, 2022. 

The retirement of Lt. Morrissette will create an opening for the position of 
lieutenant. The lieutenant position being filled will _mean that an officer is 
promoted to the position of sergeant, which translates to the department needing 
to hire a probationary police officer. 

I am respectfully asking that the Village Council direct the Forest Park Board of 
Fire and Police Commissioners to promote the next eligible police lieutenant, the 
next eligible police sergeant, and offer employment to the next, eligible 
probationary police officer upon the retirement of Lt. Morrissette. 



VllLAGE OF 

BIG CITY ACCESS 

SMALL TOWN CHARM 

Rory E •. Hoskins 
MAYOt 

517 DESPLAINES AVENUE 

FOREST PARK, IL 60130 

PH: 708-366-2323 

FAX: 708-488-036 l 

www.forestpork.net 

Joseph Byrnes 
COMMISSIONER 

ACCOUNTS & FINANCE 

Ryan Nero 
COMMISSIONER 

STREETS & PUBUC IMPROVEl,\fNTS 

Jessica L Voogd 
COMMISSIONER 
PUBUC PROPERTY 

Maria Maxham 
COMMl$SIONER 

PUBLIC HEALTH & SAFETY 

Moses E. Amidei 
VIUAGE ADMINISTRATOR 

Vanessa Moritz 
VIUAGE CIERK 

To: 

From: 

Re: 

Mayor Hoskins and CommissioneJ
,,
�

. Vanessa Moritz, Village Clerk/;/�
2023 Council Meeting Schedule 

Date: September 19, 2022 for the October I 0, 2022, meeting 

We are in the process of compiling the information to be printed in the 
Village Calendar for 2023. 

Additionally, 5 lLCS 120/2.02 of The Open Meetings Act provides that 
"public notice of all meetings, whether open or closed to the public, shall 
be given as follows: 

(a) Every public body shall give public notice of the schedule of 
regular meetings at the beginning of each calendar or fiscal year and shall
state the regular dates, times and places of such meetings.'· 

To comply with the above, the Council Meetings are included in the 
printed Village Calendar. There is one holiday in the year 2023 that will 
fall on the second or fourth Monday of the month. It is Columbus Day 
(October 9). r have taken the liberty of re-scheduling the October 9 
meeting to Tuesday. October I 0. As in the past, I am also scheduling the 
Village Council to meet only once in December on the I 8111 • 

1 recommend that the council approve the attached 2023 Village Council 
Meeting Schedule as-is or as amended at your pleasure. 





... 
Updated: 8/29/2022 

R£MINGTON'S 

Village of Forest Park - Seniors 

Lunch 

Wednesday, December 7, 

2022 

EVENT CONTRACT 

ACCOUNT: Village of Park Forest 

CONTACT: Brenda Powers 

EMAIL: bpowers@forestpark.net 

PHONE: 708-771-7737 

SALES MANAGER: Julia Mastrangeli 

EMAIL: jmastrangeli@4srg.com 

PHONE: 3128630555 

REWARDS#: 
RESTAURANT ADDRESS: 20 N Michigan Ave 

Chicago, IL 60602 

TAX-EXEMPT#: RESTAURANT PHONE: (312) 782-6000 

EVENT SUMMARY 

Time Location Areas 
Event Setup 
Type Type 

11:00 am -1:00 
Remington's 

Rutherford 
Lunch Seated 

pm Room 

,SETUP 

• TBD - final guaranteed guest count due Wed, November 30th
9 Space can eat up to 30 guests 

·FOOD

Qty.
30 THE BEAN 

coffee, tea, soft drinks included 

SALAD I hosts choice of one 

SOUP Of THE DAY 

ENTREE I guest selects one on site 

ALL AMERICAN BURGER black angus beef, cheddar, lettuce, tomato 

BLACKENED MAHI SANDWICH lettuce, tomato, onion, remoulade 

CHICKEN DIP rotisserie chicken, jack cheese, mayo, tomato onion, 

arugula, chicken au jus 

1 of 6 VillanP of Forec;t Park - <;pniorc; Lunrh 

Guests 
Event F&B 

Min 

30 $1,000.00 

Price Total 

$35.00 $1,050.00 

















VILLAGE OF 

fOREST� 
BIG CITY ACCESS 

y,: 
p�IUP22 PH 2• 15 

SMAlL��\l OF FOR[ST PARK

RAFFLE LICENSE APPLICATION 
IN THE VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

Type of Organization: 

□ Educational

on profit

APPLICATION INFORMATION 

o Business �haritable 

□ Fraternal o Labor

□ Religious o Veterans

Name of Organization: . " �� f �� -1 .;a'/&/ /-4 A I>%'$� ,JI � �5.'r
Address: � \ 9, 'ti 11\«.:e- t>• '1 1 .> � ◄ _. 41'.a>d , 7"'- 4 # TM f-' AA.
Applicant's Nam · ,.., ��ft. .. ��
Email Address: �------Phon
Length of time organization has been in existence: ___ ...:.l .... 2=-.,y=,µ-'----------------

Place and date of organization's charter, if applicable:
Place: ......... --�--------------

Items required (no later than 30 days prior to the start of all raffle sales): 
� ApplicationFee /2,�� L �·� 

.. , 

□ 

□ 

□ 

• Class A if aggregate prize value does not exceed $500.00 - $25.00
• Class B if aggregate prize value is between $500.00 and $5,000.00 - $25.00
• Class C if aggregate prize value is between $5,000.00 and $50,000.00 - $25.00
• Class D if aggregate prize value is greater than $50,000.00 - $25.00
Articles of Incorporation and/or Charter
Organization's Raffle Rules
Organization's IRS Letter of Determination (ifaP,plicable)
Fidelity Bond f\ � NJ � 

.1 I 













I understand
. nse establishrnen\h allnbed bqu or 11ce cornpliance WI rernisesowner of the 3t,ovc-descis conditional �Po" lion of the 3t,ove �at l alT1I bercby_ccrtify 1 � �:ntinuation ofth1s hce;:e result of�nY '"r::. I ack�owledg�d com:ct.that the ,ssuance an and oJdinancCS an tluS 11cens• 15 '" • ation 1s troe 3 licable Village codes :�•pection while . d that all mfor!Tl app subsequent u� f ....,,UfY an at tlus tilDe or any • der the penalty O ,_., 

,...,.., ...... ��77� ,; ... = 9:;; /fr------D•t•: 

FOREST PARK uouoR CODE 
As o/0810812022 

3-3-12: ENTERTAINMENT LICENSE: bl. show 
I. ·ted to any pu ,c ' I . I d but not be tm1 , 

A. "Entertainment'' as used h�rein sbxhal .�?; : �ive bands performmg music (m�1mum 

theatrical animate or marumate e t t o , nl, diversion productton, etc. , , k ke or any other amuseme , of 5 performers), DJ s, arao ' . th ublic offered operated, presented or exhibited to . e p r1a·�ent (as defined above) in any 
B. No lice:isee shall sponsor, conduct, o_r permit el !1te t therefor has been submitted to • • 1 th application for a 1cense hcensed premises un ess e . . d the village council.

and approved by the local liquor comm1ss1oner an 
C. Indoor enlertainment shall cease at 11 :OO _p.m. . od f e (I) calendar month.
D. Issued entertainment licenses shall be �alid for a Pei:1 ,0 on •ned sidewalk cafe 
E. Entertainment licenses shall not be valid upon prem1ses penru 

area. 
. . . . th 1 fa! holic liquor is licensed, all3-3-9-F: Live Music: In any preIDJses upon which e sa e o co . 

exterior windows and doors to the licensed premises sbalJ remain closed durmg !he playmg
or performing of any live music.

3-3-5-M-2: Amplitied and acoustic live entertainment shall be permitted on the patio _area
(beer gardens but no sidewalk cafes) of the licensed premises (no more than on� {I� tune 

per calendar month £or amplitied live entertainment) subject to the premises bemg 1ssu�d an
Entertainment License by the Village Council, in accordance with Section 3-3-12 ofth1s
Chapter 3. 

3-3-5-M-5: Permitted live entertainment on the patios of liquor licensed establishments
shall cease at 9:00 p.m. on each pennitted day.

Entertainment License (3-3-12) Application Page 2/2 

fu!lertain111 Pi,,..,.,., to Sectio,. �}icense Application Date of Application: q / / 
2 of Fora, P,ut ¼11or Colle 

N -(_ 1 's _ 2-?ame of Liquor License � . 1�lass ofForestPartcUquorL�:�t: uiz, �My 'c Pis re -�e of Applicant(s): :T: ""'-- £::;tt:-:�, :----------= Business Address: 7 Z...�/�(jr==�
0���•!..r�Q�--;;:-;::-:--:---i--===== ielepbone Nlilllber(s): r 7 0 r: h.J m 401,s ON 

E-mailAddress(es)· , . 78S:: '?60?
· ..,,t•...-.,oo{,::,/,..._ @ I &iuare Footage of Li� �- '? - /J O') a J • e,"?n

Pl tses: 0( :'Sc:70 '.fl; 4 ease describe In detail the ::::���=�:--�:--------=-!he premises. You are welc type of entertainment (as defined below) Iba in efforts to provide the �� to attach/use additional doc:umentatlo■ �!,be offered o1understanding of what type( quor C�mmissiouer and Village COUDcll �pllcalloa s) of tntertainmeut will be offered at tl1c: � Location (circle one)� . Pnmba.
� Outdoor Pabo (Beer Garden) Entertainment Type (circle): DJ �plified � Aeoustic Band Karaoke Comedy Show Exhibition Theatrical 

-------Date(s): 11 f 2-. ..,... 1' / 1 � 
��--:;-:::.!......'....£. _____ _ Time: Vv h ..3 ° p YYJ ---=--,, ::.!..:-!.... ______ _Location (cin:Je one): Indoors 

Entertainment Type (circle): DJ 
Karaoke Comedy Show 

Outdoor Patio (Beer Garden) 
Live Barnt (max S performers) 1bcattical 
Exhibition Other: ______ _ 

Date(s):. ______________________ _
Time: ________________________ _

Entertainment License (3-3-12) Applicalioo Plae Ill 





The Forest Park PTO is requesting the use of Altenheim space to use for a Night at the Cemetery event

for D91 Middle School students.

Date – Friday, October 14

Time –

● 6:15pm – set up

● 7:00-8:00pm – event

● 8:00-8:30pm – clean up

Organization requesting space –

● Forest Park PTO – Kristin Pekoll, Rachelle Ernst, Erin Leahy

Supporting organizers -

● Ms. Kass and Mr. Bacon – FPMS administration

● Nurys Uceta-Ramos – Family and Community Engagement Manager, D91

● Forest Park Historical Society – Alexis and Jill Wagner

Goals for Event-

● Connect D91 students to the history of Forest Park and local organizations

● Students will have opportunity to hear Halloween themed stories from local experts and enjoy a

bonfire and s’mores

Additional Information-

● Students will need to have a permission slip signed by parent/guardian to attend and participate

● PTO volunteers, FPMS administration and parent volunteers will be present to supervise

● We will respect those buried in cemetery spaces and will follow all guidelines given by the Village

of Forest Park and Forest Park Historical Society

Thank you for the opportunity to request the use of Village space to further engage our youth with the

larger Forest Park community! We look forward to discussing the event and request further.  Please let us

know if there is any additional information we can provide or items that need more explanation.

Kristin Pekoll and Rachelle Ernst

Forest Park PTO Executive Board


	0-092622VillageCouncilAgenda
	3A-091222VillageCouncilMinutes
	THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE COUNCIL OF THE
	VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS
	HELD ON MONDAY EVENING, SEPTEMBER 12, 2022
	ROLL CALL
	Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd and Mayor Hoskins answered the Roll Call.
	APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS
	AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd
	and Mayor Hoskins
	APPROVAL OF BILLS:
	AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd
	and Mayor Hoskins
	AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd
	and Mayor Hoskins
	AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd
	and Mayor Hoskins
	AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd
	and Mayor Hoskins
	AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd
	and Mayor Hoskins
	AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd
	and Mayor Hoskins
	AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd
	and Mayor Hoskins
	AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd
	and Mayor Hoskins
	AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd
	and Mayor Hoskins
	AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd
	and Mayor Hoskins
	AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd
	and Mayor Hoskins
	AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd
	and Mayor Hoskins
	AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd
	and Mayor Hoskins
	AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd
	and Mayor Hoskins
	AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd
	and Mayor Hoskins
	AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd
	and Mayor Hoskins
	AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd
	and Mayor Hoskins
	AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd
	and Mayor Hoskins
	AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd
	and Mayor Hoskins
	AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd
	and Mayor Hoskins
	AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd
	and Mayor Hoskins
	AYES: Commissioners Byrnes, Maxham, Nero, Voogd
	and Mayor Hoskins

	5A-Traffic&SafetyPresentation
	5A- P Safety and Traffic Commission - YTD Report 2022-09-26
	Forest Park Safety and Traffic Commission 
	Reviewed Issues – No Action
	Reviewed Issues – Completed
	Reviewed Issues – Action Recommended
	Reviewed Issues – Action Recommended
	Reviewed Issues – Action Recommended
	Reviewed Issues – Action Recommended
	Reviewed Issues – Action Recommended
	Pending Issues

	5A-FP Safety and Traffic Commission - Madison-Elgin Report

	6A-August2022FireDepartmentReport
	6B-JulyAugust2022PoliceDepartmentReport
	1
	2
	3
	4
	5
	6
	7

	7A-092622BillsByResolution
	09.26.2022 Resolution
	09.26.2022 Agenda

	9A-PoliceVehiclePurchase
	1
	9A-PoliceVehiclePurchase
	2023 Ford Explorers
	2
	Forest Park PD


	9B-15thStreetSewerAward
	1
	9B-15thStreetSewerAward
	1
	L1.Recommendation of Award_15th Street Sewer Separation.091422
	L1.Recommendation of Award_15th Street Sewer Separation.091422
	000023BG104_Bid Tabulation.rebid.091322
	COST ESTIMATE




	9C-MemoRePoliceDepartmentHiring
	9D-2023MeetingSchedule
	9E-SeniorTripContracts
	DOC037
	m.pdf

	9F-RaffleApplication
	9G-JimmysEntertainment
	9X-Jimmy'sEntertainment
	9X-Jimmy'sEntertainment2

	9H-Forest Park PTO Request for Use of the Grove



